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B1 B2 B3
( )
8,433,545 916,220 7,999,886 869,108 108.98 11,840
2009 12 31
16,888,805 1,834,800 16,296,386 1,770,439 127.54 13,856
2010 12 31
24,380,201 2,648,665 22,733,377 2,469,754 148.36 16,118
2011 12 31
37,879,649 4,115,245 36,746,847 3,992,177 169.88 18,456
2012 12 31
73,650,867 ,001,4 ,627,874 7,129,812 193.71 21,045
2013 12 31 3,650,86 8,001,430 65,627,8 9,8 93
162,666,7 17,672,111 124,862,011 13,565, 215. 23,450
2014 12 31 62,666,705 6 862,0 3,565,009 5.85
249,356,471 27,090,087 172,035,7 18,689, 239.4 26,018
2015 12 31 9,356 090,08 035,700 8,689,958 39.49
,032, »990, »004, ,215, - 28,422
2016 12 31 450,632,544 48,956,720 342,554,819 37,215,156 261.62
905,476,480 98,370,965 808,253,503 87,808,661 282.56 30,697 . 11,292
2017 12 31 103.94
10
1,092,511,724 118,690,474 896,989,080 97,448,894 303.05 32,923 . 12,111
2018 12 31 111.48
2018 1,191,437,683 129,437,790 910,456,678 98,912,013 295.70 32,125 108.77 11,817
1,200,569,721 130,429,894 919,588,715 99,904,118 297.52 32,323 109.44 11,890
10 1,163,770,238 126,431,999 882,789,232 95,906,222 299.47 32,534 110.16 11,968
11 1,173,301,699 127,467,497 892,320,693 96,941,720 301.41 32,745 110.87 12,045
12 1,092,511,724 118,690,474 896,989,080 97,448,894 303.05 32,923 111.48 12,111
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2019 1,115,003,579 121,133,989 834,022,574 90,608,212 305.29 33,167 112.30 12,200
1,113,111,429 120,928,426 832,130,423 90,402,649 307.35 33,391 113.06 12,283
1,119,202,293 121,590,137 838,221,287 91,064,361 309.52 33,626 113.86 12,370
1,056,172,448 114,742,575 775,130,204 84,210,145 311.73 33,866 114.67 12,458 100.72 | 10,942
1,073,698,434 116,646,598 792,657,894 86,114,354 313.67 34,077 115.38 12,535 101.77 | 11,056
1,079,623,492 117,290,296 799,145,915 86,819,212 315.85 34,314 116.19 12,623 100.69 | 10,939
1,064,490,343 115,646,231 763,041,218 82,896,798 318.04 34,552 116.99 12,710 102.73 | 11,161

) B1 2009 B2 2017 B3 2019
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( ( )
SPC
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 12 31 2015 12 31 2016 12 31 2017 12 31 2018 12 31
10
X 16,391,246 31,371,441 49,054,131 90,617,588 135,639,594
(1,780,745) (3,408,193) (5,329,241) (9,844,695) (14,735,885)
9,784,374 14,211,222 21,805,289 45,424,029 61,705,583
(1,062,974) (1,543,907) (2,368,927) (4,934,867) (6,703,695)
9,784,374 14,211,222 21,805,289 45,424,029 61,705,583
(1,062,974) (1,543,907) (2,368,927) (4,934,867) (6,703,695)
) 124,862,011 172,035,700 342,554,819 808,253,503 896,989,080
(13,565,009) (18,689,958) (37,215,156) (87,808,661) (97,448,894)
B1 578,466 718,335 1,309,336 2,625,681 2,738,468
B2 638,256 601,910
124,862,011 172,035,700 342,554,819 808,253,503 896,989,080
(13,565,009) (18,689,958) (37,215,156) (87,808,661) (97,448,894)
162,666,705 249,356,471 450,632,544 905,476,480 | 1,092,511,724
(17,672,111) (27,090,087) (48,956,720) (98,370,965) |  (118,690,474)
215.85 239.49 261.62 282.56 303.05
- (23,450) (26,018) (28,422) (30,697) (32,923)
103.94 111.48
B2
(11,292) (12,111)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
76.76 68.99 76.02 89.26 82.10
7.84 8.26 6.37 5.62 6.88
C D
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@
@)
2019
() 20,000,100
100
20,000,000
)
)

763,041,218 82,897 )
B1 692,110,180 75,191 )
B2 70,417,381 7,650 )
B3 513,657 56 )
B1 2,176,202.42
B2 601,909.91
B3 5,000.00

@
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2019 B3
B1
(2019
1 349,420.170 16.06
2 202,230.286 9.29
3 190,562.421 8.76
4 113,708.326 5.23
5 83,692.555 3.85
B2
(2019
1 601,909.91 100
B3
(2019
1 5,000.00 100
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2013 22
AlFMs AIFMD
AlFMs EU AlFMs AIFMD
AIFMD
AIFMD
1471 1474
FATCA
30
US IGA
FATCA US FATCA
US 1GA US FATCA US 1GA
FATCA
FATCA US FATCA
US 1GA
TIA
TIA
IRS US IGA
FATCA
OECD
CRS OECD
CRS
MCAA
MCAA
IT
MCAA

2018 CRS CRS CRS
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(2019 )

( ) ()
346,800,000 32.58 45.45
177,180,000 16.64 23.22
156,664,000 14.72 20.53
51,386,000 4.83 6.73
48,018,000 4.51 6.29
35,845,000 3.37 4.70
25,452,000 2.39 3.34
25,053,000 2.35 3.28
19,446,000 1.83 2.55
19,224,000 1.81 2.52
92,422,343 8.68 12.11
997,490,343 93.71 130.73
67,000,000 6.29 8.78
1,064,490, 343 100.00 139.51
301,449,125 28.32 39.51
) (8;?§§$41’218) 71.68 100.00

2019 31
108.64
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( )
( HO?
B1 B2

(2009 2009 12 31 ) 8.98
(2010 2010 12 31 ) 17.03
(2011 2011 12 31 ) 16.32
(2012 2012 12 31 ) 14.51
(2013 2013 12 31 ) 14.03
(2014 2014 12 31 ) 11.43
(2015 2015 12 31 ) 10.95
(2016 2016 12 31 ) 9.24
(2017 2017 12 31 ) 8.00 3.94

10
(2018 2018 12 31 ) 7.25 7.25
) ( ) 100x ( )

¢ )
( )
B1 B
100
(®)
B4

B4
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23 103
2019 31 UFJ
108.64
2018 12 31
2018 2017
4 25,269,724 2,745,303 95,135,770 10,335,550
6 2,259,671 245,491 4,783,770 519,709
5 1,064,982,329 115,699,680 805,556,940 87,515,706
1,092,511,724 118,690,474 905,476,480 98,370,965
21,520,000 2,337,933 16,650,000 1,808,856
7 506,115 54,984 7,983,432 867,320
8 173,496,529 18,848,663 72,589,545 7,886,128
195,522,644 21,241,580 97,222,977 10,562,304
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896,989,080 97,448,894 808,253,503 87,808,661
2018 12 31
2018 2017
9 135,512,024 14,722,026 88,582,455 9,623,598
11 127,570 13,859 1,063,430 115,531
10 971,703 105,566
135,639,594 14,735,885 90,617,588 9,844,695
17,702,752 1,923,227 11,836,236 1,285,889
15,426,398 1,675,924 11,356,001 1,233,716
12 11,775,101 1,279,247 7,320,262 795,273
5 25,069,080 2,723,505 13,638,291 1,481,664
1,371,738 149,026
13 2,588,942 281,263 1,042,769 113,286
73,934,011 8,032,191 45,193,559 4,909,828
61,705,583 6,703,695 45,424,029 4,934,867
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(Maitland Administration Limited Admiral Financial Centre)
KY1 1208 32021
(P.0. Box 32021, Grand Cayman, KY1 1208, Cayman Islands)
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SPC
2009
2019 18 Bl
2019 10 B4
2019 11 B4

1997

2009

(Mitchell Alan Barrett) CEO
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2003
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ucT 15
2004 2017
Alco
(Nicolas Hardy)
1992
BoE
BoE
2004
2010
(Catherine Mclraith)
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B4

B4 B4
B4 2019 11
B4

B4

B4 B4
B4
B4 B4

B4
17:00

B4 B4

B4
B4

B4
B4

B4 100,000.00
10,000.00

100,000.00
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)
2019 40,000 )

)
2008 12
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. Deal System
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2019
30
Jean Craven
) . 27
Prieur du Plessis
18
Evan Feldman
_ 25
Orcus Capital
(2019 )
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PwC
2019
2019
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( ) ( )
B1: 318.04
. 2009 800 B2: 116.99
(Barak Structured Trade Finance
B3: 102.73
Fund)
2014 30 147.67
(Barak Impact Finance Fund)
2016 11 65 119.52
(Barak Shariah Trade Finance
Fund)
2016 65 129.69
(Barak Mikopo Credit Fund)
2016 12 129.16
(Barak Asha Impact Fund)
)
(Riparian Advisory Proprietary Limited)
)
2019 100 ( 10,864 )
)
2008 12
FSB

)

(The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited Financial Asset Services (Corporate and
Investment Banking Division))

)
2019 230

()

1862

)

(Maitland Administration Limited Admiral Financial Centre)
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()
2019

)

Teneo Partners

)
2019

)

Teneo Partners

2011

(Riparian Advisory

2,942,942.78

8,450

2009
2010

14

Proprietary Limited)
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320

2010
2011

)

(The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited Financial Asset Services (Corporate and

Investment Banking Division))

Scrip

(Maitland Administration Limited Admiral Financial Centre)
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Teneo Partners

Teneo Partners
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38

59

131

108.64

2019

781226

31
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@

&)

2018 12 31
2018 2017

25,269,724 2,745,303 95,135,770 10,335,550
2,259,671 245,491 4,783,770 519,709
1,064,982,329 115,699,680 805,556,940 87,515,706
1,092,511,724 118,690,474 905,476,480 98,370,965
21,520,000 2,337,933 16,650,000 1,808,856
506,115 54,984 7,983,432 867,320
173,496,529 18,848,663 72,589,545 7,886,128
195,522,644 21,241,580 97,222,977 10,562,304
896,989,080 97,448,894 808,253,503 87,808,661
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
9 135,512,024 14,722,026 88,582,455 9,623,598
11 127,570 13,859 1,063,430 115,531
10 971,703 105,566
135,639,594 14,735,885 90,617,588 9,844,695
17,702,752 1,923,227 11,836,236 1,285,889
15,426,398 1,675,924 11,356,001 1,233,716
12 11,775,101 1,279,247 7,320,262 795,273
5 25,069,080 2,723,505 13,638,291 1,481,664
1,371,738 149,026

13 2,588,942 281,263 1,042,769 113,286
73,934,011 8,032,191 45,193,559 4,909,828
61,705,583 6,703,695 45,424,029 4,934,867
Bl 20.56 2,234 21.37 2,322
B2 7.28 791 5.53 601
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
808,253,503 87,808,661 342,554,819 37,215,156
184,706,689 20,066,535 532,217,569 57,820,117
(157,676,695)  (17,129,996) (111,942,914) (12,161,478)
61,705,583 6,703,695 45,424,029 4,934,867
896,989,080 97,448,894 808,253,503 87,808,661
2018 12 31
2018 2017
16 (36,962,260)  (4,015,580)  (22,199,873) (2,411,794)
(223,014,360)  (24,228,280)  (358,466,834) (38,943,837)
2,524,099 274,218 (3,077,703) (334,362)
(7,477,316) (812,336) 4,804,552 521,967
(264,929,837)  (28,781,977)  (378,939,858) (41,168,026)
74,031,914 8,042,827 42,122,010 4,576,135
8 (6,838,740) (742,961)  (9,991,088) (1,085,432)

(197,736,663)  (21,482,111)  (346,808,936) (37,677,323)
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184,706,689 20,066,535 532,217,569 57,820,117
(157,676,695)  (17,129,996)  (111,942,914) (12,161,478)
4,870,000 529,077 10,347,000 1,124,098
184,435,728 20,037,097 79,537,042 8,640,904
(88,465,105)  (9,610,849)  (102,872,514) (11,176,070)
127,870,617 13,891,864 407,286,184 44,247,571
(69,866,046)  (7,590,247) 60,477,248 6,570,248
95,135,770 10,335,550 34,658,522 3,765,302
25,269,724 2,745,303 95,135,770 10,335,550

82/226



2018 12 31

SPC

Portfolio Company)

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IAS 39

2018

2018

IFRS

a)

2015

2017 12 31

b)
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2008 24
(Segregated

2014 1ASB



IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

IAS 39

IFRS

e |FRS

IFRS

ECL
2014
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS
ECL
ECL

1ASB

SICR

ECL

12

IFRS

IFRS

SICR

12
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2018

IAS 39
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SICR
°
°
°
°
°
SICR
PRM
SICR
°
°
°
°
°
PD
ECL
ECL
12
LGD
e PD
12 12M PD

e EAD

SICR

SICR

EAD
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SICR

LGD

PD EAD

Lifetime PD



e |LGD

ECL

ECL

SICR

IFRS

PD

PD EAD

EAD
ECL
LGD
12M PD S&P
S&P
12
PD
PD LGD
ECL
LGD
LGD
S&P

IFRS
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EAD
LGD
PD LGD EAD ECL
S&P
EAD
LGD
ECL
PD ECL
IFRS

SICR

IFRS
IFRS
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@
0.5
1.5
2.0 LIBOR
20
LIBOR
@

(b)
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IFRS
@

2018 IFRS

[ ]

[ ]

IFRS IAS 39
SPPI

(b)

FVOCI

IAS 39
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SPPI



©
2018

ECL

IAS 39

(D)

ECL

12 ECL

O

12

ECL
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SICR
Q)
)
()
1,137,738
2018

12 31 1,651,824

@
@
(b)

@
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(b)
12

©

IFRS

2018 2017
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Bl B2
B2
B1 2018 12 31
B2 2017
12
IFRS 2018

e IFRS 15

e |FRS

e IFRS 2014 2016

e IFRIC 22

2019

2018 12
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1AS 2020 1AS 1AS
1AS IFRS

e |IFRS

°

° 1AS
IAS 19 2019

°

2018

°

IFRS 2020
1ASB

2018 10
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IFRS 2019
)
IAS 39
IFRS 16 2019 IAS 17
IFRS 15 [1AS 17
IFRS 16
2016
1ASB
1ASB
IFRS
16
IFRS 16 IAS 17 IFRIC
SIC 15
SIC 27
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IFRS 17 2021 IASB IFRS 17

IFRS 4 GAAP
IFRS 17 IFRS 17

IFRS IFRS 17

IFRS 15 IFRS 17

2017

IAS 28 2019
IFRS

2017 10 2019
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2015 |2019
-2017 e IFRS 3
2017 12
e IFRS 11
e |AS 12
o IAS 23
IFRIC 23 2019 IFRIC 23
IAS 12
2017
IAS 12
IFRIC 23
2018 2017
( ) ( )
23,112,985 31,035,618
2,010,281 61,596,172
109,767 523,690
36,691 1,980,291
25,269,724 95,135,771

2018 12 31
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2018 2017
( ) ( )
1,129,352,996 829,222,010
ECL/IAS 39 (64,370,667) (23,665,070)
1,064,982,329 805,556,940
2018 2017
( ) ( )
1,129,352,996 829,222,010
(162,802,657) (59,357,090)
966,550,339 769,864,920
2018 12 331,787,477 2017 371,977,682
49 2017 20
ECL
653,239,056 261,050,954 52,260,329 966,550,339
ECL (15,170,247) (16,595,035)  (32,605,386)  (64,370,668)

ECL 638,068,809 244,455,919 19,654,943 902,179,671
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IFRS
2017 12 31
- - 23,665,070 23,665,070
2018
8,849,628 6,786,889 - 15,636,517
ECL 8,849,628 6,786,889 - 15,636,717
4,095,558 5,504,442 - 9,600,000
2018
4,754,070 1,282,447 - 6,036,517
4,754,070 1,282,447 - 6,036,517
2018 2017
( ) ( )
2018 39,301,587 10,026,779
2018 12 31 64,370,667 23,665,070
ECL « ) 25,069,080 13,638,291
2018 IFRS
1,560
BFNL 960
BFML 600
12
2018
570,914,480 159,625,112 39,325,328 769,864,920
106,449,416 22,847,066 6,215,542 135,512,024
(60,319,189) 60,319,189 - -

(17,638,619) - 17,638,619 -
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STF

2018 12 31

2018

2018 12 31

2018

STF
STF
ECL
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2,338,753 5,267,244 - 7,605,997
(37,948,937) (2,597,602) - (40,546,539)
420,836,724 27,903,267 83,101 448,823,090

(331,393,572) (12,313, 322) (9,630,521)  (353,337,415)

- - (1,371,738) (1,371,738)
653,239,056 261,050,954 52,260,329 966,550,339
ECL
12
33,059,409 25,292,597 1,005,084 59,357,090
158,441,434 3,243,847 1,117,377 162,802,658
125,382,025  (22,048,750) 112,293 103,445,568
12
8,849,628 6,786,889 23,665,070 39,301,587
2,548,637 1,069,584 310,193 3,928,414
(473,960) 3,740,540 - 3,266,580
(483,938) - 10,025,303 (9,541,365)
214,403 1,285,906 - 1,500,310
(667,650) (498,547) - (1,166,197)
455,287 2,623,139 - 3,078,426
9,268,032 1,887,708 - 11,155,740
(4,540,192) (300,184) (23,442) (4,863,818)
- - (1,371,738) (1,371,738)
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2018 12 31
15,170,247 16,595,035 32,605,386 64,370,668
2018
BFML
2018
27
2018 IFRS
PD LGD
S P SME
SME
S&P S&P
SME
S&P SME
PD S&P SME
EBITDA

N/A
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LGD
90
CCC-  AAA LGD B+ 20
LGD
2 LGD
LGD
ECL
2018 2017
( ) ( )
2,259,671 4,783,770
2018 2017
( ) ( )
169,045 3,898,607
81,946 3,955,549
152,500 59,998
90,708 20,280
7,173 19,823
- 6,066
4,743 23,109
506,115 7,983,432
2018 2017

101/226
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( )

55,551,908
23,207,276
3,137,100
16,000,000
33,220,336
22,644,953
2,333,014
6,708,070

42,354,879
3,137,100
7,000,000

1,828,658

(162,802,657)

54,320,637

10,693,872

18,268,909

173,496,529

72,589,546

2018

2017

72,589,545
184,435,728
(88,465, 105)

11,775,101
(6,838,740)

98,595,843
79,537,042
(102,872,514)

7,320,262
(9,991,088)

4,936,361

(2,670,826)

173,496,529

72,589,546

2018

2017

135,512,024

88,582,455

5,016,385 2017

1,537,215

4,749,115
363,620

102/226
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11.

12.

13.

34,836
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2017 44,150 344,090 2017
2018 2017
( ) ( )
- 971,703
2018 2017
( ) ( )
47,678 238,359
79,892 825,071
127,570 1,063,430
2018 2017
( ) ( )
5,412,537 5,854,850
6,362,564 1,465,412
11,775,101 7,320,262
2018 2017
( ) ( )
206,575 57,210
287,134 180,298
2,752 2,536
37,016 20,709
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3,600 3,938
175,096 221,820
224,009 233,625
34,617 45,600
721,093 158,824
96,405 37,468
800,645 80,741
2,588,942 1,042,769
14.
2018
15.
B1
B2
100
20,000,000 20,000,100 1
12 31
2018
B1 2,625,681 644,447 (631,660) 2,738,468
B2 638,256 - (36,346) 601,910
3,263,937 644,447 (568,006) 3,340,378
2017
B1 1,309,336 1,763,636 (447,291) 2,625,681
B2 - 647,290 (9,034) 638,256
1,309,336 2,410,926 (456,325) 3,263,937

2018 2017
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B1
B2
16.
17.
18.
@
896,989,081

2017 11,836,236
3,898,607
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808,253,503

( ) ( )
303.05 282.56
111.48 103.94
2018 2017
( ) ( )
61,705,583 45,424,029
25,069,080 13,638,291
11,775,101 7,320,262
(135,512,024) (88,582, 455)
(36,962, 260) (22,199,873)
2018 12 31
sp 17,702,752
169,045 2017
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()
12
LIBOR
20
LIBOR
15,426,398 2017 11,356,001
81,946 2017 3,955,549
20
896,989,090 2017 808,253,503
©
BVI
35,000
12
287,134 2017 180,298
90,708 2017 20,280
(d) 2018 12 31
2018 2017
( ) ( )
sP - (186,000)
SP - 700,000
®
2018 2017
( ) ( )
Sp
SP
SP
SP SP
(15,076,459) (12,674,416)
(15,076,459) (12,674,416)
Sp
SP
sp 2,202,522 -
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SP
SP
SP
SP SP
SP
SP
SP
BFML 2018 2017
1,900 BFML

19.

19.1

19.2
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(78,127,237)

2,202,522 (78,127,237)
136,231 -
(18,265,688) (100,000)
(18,129,457) (100,000)
SP
5,267,244 -
SP
(7,204,393) (33,951, 836)
(1,937,149) (33,951, 836)
20,357 BFML
19.3
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2018 12 31

12

430,311,901 190,855,827 374,286,686 69,527,915 1,064,982,329 432,617,292 11,279,344
2,259,671 - - - 2,259,671 2,259,671
25,269,724 - - - 25,269,724 2,010,306 23,259,418
457,841,296 190,855,827 374,286,686 69,527,915 1,186,603,787 434,627,598 36,798,433
12

(506,115) - - - (506,115) - (506,115)
(35,418,945)  (66,563,125)  (67,404,614)  (4,109,845) (173,496,529) (77,547,793) (4,008,131)
(21,520,000) - - - (21,520,000) - (21,520,000)
(57,445,060)  (66,563,125)  (67,404,614)  (4,109,845) (195,522, 644) (77,547,793) (26,034, 246)
400,396,235 124,292,702 306,882,072 65,418,071 896,989,080 357,079,805 10,764,187

2017 12 31

12

210,909,242 238,911,787 355,735,911 805,556,940 283,044,209 1,443,992
4,783,770 - - 4,783,770 - 4,783,770
95,135,770 - - 95,135,770 76,467,796 18,667,974
310,828,782 238,911,787 355,735,911 905,476,480 359,512,005 24,895,736

108/226



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

12
(7,983,432) - - (7,983,432) - (7,983,432)
(13,232,858) (5,083,328) (54,273,358) (72,589,545) - (13,232,858)
(16,650, 000) - - (16,650,000) - (16,650, 000)
(37,866, 290) (5,083,328) (54,273,358) (97,222,977) - (37,866,290)
272,962,492 233,828,459 301,462,552 808,253,503 359,512,005 (12,970,554)
2018 12 31
3,570,798 2017 3,595,120
3,570,798 2017 3,595,120
19.3

2018 2017
( ) ( )

1,064,982,329 805,556,940

2,259,671 4,783,770
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PD

LGD

S&P SME

PD B B-
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25,269,724 95,135,770
1,092,511,724 905,476,480
PD EAD
IFRS ECL
PD S&P
S&P SME PD LGD
S&P
N/A
LGD PD
PD LGD
SME SME
A A-
PD S&P
PD 12
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S&P AAA cce- 19
S&P
AAA 0.0046%
AA+ 0.0076%
AA 0.0137%
AA- 0.0286%
A+ 0.0449%
A 0.0696%
A- 0.0978%
BBB+ 0.1439%
BBB 0.1973%
BBB- 0.3094%
BB+ 0.4427%
BB 0.7419%
BB- 1.2487%
B+ 2.4417%
B 4._.5755%
B- 8.6656%
CCC+ 15.9703%
ccc 29.4341%
CCC- 54.2517%
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ECL
ECL
53,378 1,117 52,261 32,605 19,656 7,785 *11,870
* 1,100 BFML
P-1
P-1  P-3
P-1  P-3 2017
2017
105 10,000
2018 12 31
2018 2017
( ) ( )
- 805,556,940
2017 12 31

210,913,316 242,904,488 344,239,541 798,057,345
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- - 7,499,595 7,499,595
- - 23,665,070 23,665,070
210,913,316 242,904,488 375,404,206 829,222,010
- - (23,665,070) (23,665,070)
210,913,316 242,904,488 351,739,136 805,556,940
2018 2017
( ) ( )
146,458 4,511,238
25,123,266 90,624,532
25,269,724 95,135,770
2018 2017
( ) ( )
2,259,671 4,783,770
21,099,734 - - 21,099,734 BBB-
725,813,042 214,913,138 - 940,726,180 B- BB+
64,702,283 49,447,093 53,377,706 167,527,082 Ccec+
811,615,059 264,360,231 53,377,706 1,129,352,996
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12 31

78 2017

19.4

Bl B2

Bl

19.5

64
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2018 2017
(%) (%)

8% 12%
T 9%
5t 5%
78% 64%
2% 10%
100% 100%
4.6% -
115 2017 110

10 70

B2 3
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90
SP 340
30 30
30
2018 12 31 12
439,638,012 199,471,194 411,088,386 108,876,800 1,159,074,392
2,259,671 - - - 2,259,671
25,269,724 - - - 25,269,724
457,841,296 190,855,827 411,088,386 108,876,800 1,186,603,787
(506,116) - - - (506,116)
(36,251,678) (69,385,961) (70,329, 281) (6,433,403) (182,400,323)
(21,520, 000) - - - (21,520, 000)
(58,277,793) (69,385,961) (70,329, 281) (6,433,403) (204,426,438)
408,889,614 130,085,234 340,759,105 102,443,398 982,177,349
2017 12 31 12
365,051,883 177,368,565 306,783,413 849,203,861
4,783,770 - - 4,783,770
95,135,770 - - 95,135,770
464,971,423 177,368,565 306,783,413 949,123,401
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(7,983,432) - - (7,983,432)
(13,232,858) (5,083,329) (54,273,358) (72,589,545)
(16,650,000) - - (16,650,000)
(37,866,290) (5,083,329) (54,273,358) (97,222,977)
427,105,133 172,285,236 252,510,055 851,900,424
19.6
2018 12 31
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
- 527 - (13,904) (13,377)
- - - (243,208) (243,208)
2017 12 31
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ( )
- 1,925 - (19,823) (17,898)
- - - (26,346) (26,346)
2017 12 31 10

10
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2018 2017
( ) ( )
+- (1,338) +- (1,790)
+/- (24,321) /- (2,635)
19.7
() ()
2018 2017

- 0.00% 716,422 0.09%
11,556,500 1.29% 10,907,616 1.35%
3,695,814 0.41% 2,227,766 0.28%
- 0.00% 908,734 0.11%
- 0.00% 23,560,568 2.91%
45,803,631 5.11% 22,803,926 2.82%
377,184 0.04% 716,264 0.09%
8,692,510 0.97% 171,377 0.02%
15,416,428 1.44% - 0.00%
177,735,534 19.81% 123,410,878 15.27%
5,697,442 0.64% - 0.00%
189,168,562 21.09% 128,553,511 15.91%
18,566,891 2.07% 12,822,978 1.59%
1,045,056 0.12% 2,931,298 0.36%
- 0.00% 31,617,662 3.91%
49,248,783 5.49% 18,700,244 2.31%
1,131,129 0.13% 2,128,341 0.26%
1,342,888 0.15% - 0.00%
2,337,166 0.26% 4,066,181 0.50%
14,971,470 1.67% 10,656,480 1.32%
85,467,564 9.53% - 0.00%
10,851,978 1.49% - 0.00%
30,933,456 3.45% - 0.00%
2,439,054 0.27% 19,410,506 2.40%
2,550,076 0.28% 12,169,198 1.51%
331,384,362 36.94% 219,117,181 27.11%
1,507,943 0.17% 1,221,013 0.15%
14,148,624 1.58% 9,755,562 1.21%
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13,150,566 1.47% 10,649,755 1.32%
1,517,748 0.17% 1,231,493 0.15%
14,829 0.00% - 0.00%
- 0.00% 84,452,244 10.45%
71,235,096 7.94% 56,892,041 7.04%
17,364,714 1.94% 17,422,771 2.16%
0.00% 0.00%
1,129,352,996 125.90% 829,222,010 102.59%
ECL (64,370,668) -7.18% (23,665,070) -2.93%
1,064,982,329 118.73% 805,556,940 99.67%
(167,993,249) -18.73% 2,696,563 0.33%
896,989,080 100.00% 808,253,503 100.00%
2018
(1,061,105,961) 118.3% 805,556,940 99.67%
(164,116,880) -18.30% 2,696,563 0.33%
896,989,081 100% 808,253,503 100%
19.8
12 31
2018 2017
) )

15% 15%

17% 14%

% 13%
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9% 11%
6% 10%
6% 6%
6% 6%
5% 1%
29% 24%
100% 100%
2018 29 22
2018 12 31

2019 28
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(2019 )
1,064,490,343 115,646,231
301,449,125 32,749,433
763,041,218 82,896,798
B1 692,110,180 75,190, 850
B2 70,417,381 7,650,144
B3 513,657 55,804
B1 2,176,202.42
B2 601,909.91
B3 5,000.00
B1 318.04 34,552
B2 116.99 12,710
B3 102.73 11,161
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Page 11
BARAX STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
MNate 2018 2017
Uush Ush
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 25,269,724 95,135,710
Other receivables 6 2,259,671 4,783,770
Loans receivable 5 1,064,982,329 B85, 556,540
Total assets 1,092,511,724 905,476,480
= e e S Em s e
LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Capital contributions received in advance 21,520,000 16,650,000
Actrued expenses 7 506,115 7,983,432
Lnans payable 8 173,496,529 72,589,545
Liabllides (excluding net assels
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) 195,522,644 97,222,977
N TRESORNEEE
Net Assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 896,989,080 808,253,503
R T P ey RSN TR
Authorised for issue by the Board of Directors o8 ........oeee and signed on Its

beha!f by:

The notes on pages 15 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Page 12
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Note 2018 2017
usp ush
Income
Interest income g 135,512,024 B8,582,455
Other Income i1 127,570 1,063,430
Service fee Income 10 = 971,703
Total incoma 135,639,594 90,617,588
Expenses
Management fees 17,702,752 11,836,236
Performance fees 15,426,398 11,356,001
Interest expense 12 11,775,101 7,320,362
Credit impairment losses 5 25,069,080 13,638,291
Net lesses on derecognition of financial assets measured at
amortised cost 1,371,738 =
Other operating expenses 13 2,588,942 1,042,768
Total operating expenses

73,934011 45193559

L S EEEE ————— e

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemabie participating shares from operations 61,705,583 45,424,029

S EEFEFEEDEE

usD usp
Earnings per share
Class B1 20.56 21.37
Class B2 7.28 553
Authorised for issue by the Board of Direttors on .....cecssssmennin.. and signed on its behalf
by:

The notes on pages 15 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Page 13

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE

PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeamable participating shares at
the beginning of the year

Procesds from redeemable participating
shares issued

Payment to redeamable participating
shares redeemed

Increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares
from operations

Met assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares at
the end of the year

The notes on pages 15 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018
usp

808,253,503

184,706,689

(157,676,695)

61,705,583

2017
UsD

342,554,819

532,217,569

(111,942,914)

45,424,029

808,253,503
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows utilised in operations
Increase in loans raceivable

Increasef {decrease) in other receivables
Increase/{decrease) in accrued expenses

Cash utilised in operating activities

Interast recajved
Interest paid on loans payable

Met cash flow used in operating activites

Cash flows from financing activities

Procesds from redeemable participating shares issued
Fayment of redeemable participating shares redeemed
Proceeds from capital contributions received in advance
Proceeds received from finance obtained

Repayments of finance obtained

Net cash from financing activities

MNet movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the periad

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

16

Page 14
2018 2017

uso uspo
(36,962,260)  (22,199,873)
(223,014,360) (358,466,834)
2,524,000  (3,077,703)
(7,477,316) 4,804,552
(264,929,837) (378,939,858)
74,031,914 42,122,010
(6,838,740)  (9,991,088)
(197,736,663)  (346,808,936)
184,706,689 532,217,569
(157,676,695) (111,942,914)
4,870,000 10,347,000
184,435,728 79,537,042
(88,465,105) (102,872,514)
127,870,617 407,286,184
(69,866,046) 60,477,248
95,135,770 34,658,522
25,269,724 95,135,770

The notes on pages 15 to 68 form an integral part of these financial statemants.
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Page 15
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
1. ORGANISATION AND PURPOSE

Barak Fund SPC Limited (the "Company™) is an open ended investment company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company on 24 September 2008 and reglstered as a segregated
partfolio company under the provisions of the Companies Law (2015) of the Cayman Islands. As a
segregated portfolio company under Cayman Islands law, the Company can operate segregated
portfolios with the benefit of statutory segregation of assets and liabilities between each segregated
porifolio. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 the Company has seven segregated portfolios, of which
Barak Structured Trade Finance is one of the segregated porifolios.

Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio (the "Fund” or "Segregated Portfolio") is market
neutral providing asset backed debt in trade finance transactions. The fund does not take proprietary
positions. Financed commaodities generally incorporate all risk asset insurance and collateral monitoring.
The fund is listed on the Irsh Stock Exchange.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, are set out
below,

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS"). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Funds accounting policies. The areas involving & higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 2 of the financial statements.

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares unless otherwise stated.

All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest US Dollar.
New and amended standards adopted by the Fund
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments {effective for annual period beginning on or after January 2018)

IFRS 9 replaces the multiple classification and measurement models in LAS 39 Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement with a single model that had initially only two classification categories:
amortised cost and fair value.

Classification of debt assets is now driven by the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is
measured at amortised cost if: a) the objective of the business model is to hold the financial asset for
the collection of the contractual cash flows, and b) the contractual cash flows under the instrument
solely represent payments of principal and interest, All other debt and equity instruments, including
investments in complex debt instruments and equity investments, must be recognised at fair value.

All fair value movements on financial assets are taken through the statement of profit or loss, except

for equity investments that are not held for trading, which may be recorded in the statement of profit
or loss or in other comprehensive income (without subseguent recycling to profit or loss).
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Page 16
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
New and amended standards adopted by the Fund (Continued)

IFRS 9 — Fimancial Instruments (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 2018)
{continued)

For financial liabilities that are measured under the fair value option, entities need to recognise the
part of the fair value change that is due to changes in the their own credit risk in other comprehensive
income rather than profit or loss. In July 2014, the IASB made further changes to the classification
and measurement rules and also introduced a new impairment model. The changes introduce:

= A third measurement category (FVOCI) for certain financial assets that are debt instruments

« & new expected credit koss (ECL) model which involves a three-stage approach whereby financial
assets move through the three stages as their credit quality changes. The stage dictat=s how an entity
measures impairment losses and applies the effective interest rate method. A simplified approach is
permitted for financial assets that do not have a significant financing component,

On initial recognition, entities will record a day-1 loss equal to the 12 month ECL (or lifetime ECL for
trade receivables), unless the assets are considered credit impaired, The effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of this new accounting standard has been disclosed on note 5.There has been no
impact on the Fund's accounting for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss and the Fund
does not have any such liabilities.

The Fund has adopted IFRS 3 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with a date of transition of 1 January
2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts previously
recognised in the financial statements. The Fund did not early adopt any of IFRS 9 in previous periods.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Fund elected not to restate comparative
figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of
transition were recognisad in the opening retained eamings and other reserves of the current periad.

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 disclosures have also
only been applied to the cumrent period. The comparative period notes disclosures repeat those
disclosures made in the prior year.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in our accounting policies for recognition, classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets. IFRS
9 also significantly amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 *Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’.

Mote 5 sets out disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on the Fund. Further
details of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current period (as well as the previous
IAS 39 accounting policies applied in the comparative period) are described in more detail in section
2 below,

'Loans and Receivable’, under TAS 39 are now classified as "Amortised Cost” under a hold to collect
business model.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Mew and amended standards adopted by the Fund (Continued)

IFRS 9 putlines a "three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial

recognition as summarised below:

. A loan instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in "Stage 1% and
has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Fund.

. If a sgnificant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition s identified, the loan
instrument is moved to "Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. If the financial
instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved o "Stage 3°.

. Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion
of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
manths. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit
losses on a lifetime basis.

. A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider
farward looking information

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under current circumstances.

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Fund in addressing the requirements of adoption
of IFRS 9 are:

Significant increase in credlt sk (SICR)
The following factors are considered when determining SICR:

+ Significant adverse changes in regulatory, business, financial and/ or economic conditions in
which the borrower operates

Actual or expected restructuring

Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower
Significant change in collateral value which is expected to increase risk of default

Early sians of cashflow/ liquidity problems such as unexplained delay in servicing of trade
creditors/ loans

& & @

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-locking information and is performed, where a Proactive
Risk Management (PRM) list is used to monitor credit risk, at the counterparty level and on a periodic
basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropriateness
by the independent Credit Risk team.
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Page 18
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

The Fund provides alternative credit solutions to the counterparbes in the portfolio because access to
traditional credit is generally not available to these counterparties. Therefore, the borrowers require
alternative solutions and may require restructuring more frequently than the segment of the borrowing
population that Is serviced through traditional banking lines. Hence, the Fund does not use a specific
number of days in its determination of SICR as the traditional banking considerations are generally
too low a hurdle for this segment of the borrowing population and does not adequately represent the
portfolio of clients for higher-risk counterparties, Therefore, the Fund applies a much more subjective
approach when assessing whether there is a SICR and takes a holistic approach and not just days
overdue for repayment into account.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
The Fund defines a financial instrument as in default, when the borrower is unlikely to meet the pay
criteria, which indicates that the borrower is in significant financial difficulty, These are instances
where:

+ The borrower is in long-term forbearance

« The borrower is insolvent

+ The borrower is in breach of financial covenant(s) and efforts to rectify the breach have not

been successful
+ It is bacoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
+ The borrower is in default and is uncocperative in its efforts bo repay the facility

Due to the nature of the Fund and its borrowers as explained under “Significant increase in credit risk
(SICR}” abowve, the Fund does not use a specific quantity of days past due in its definition of default.
All loans are assessed on a case by case basis based on the gualitative criteria above.

The criteria’s above have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Fund and are consistent
with the definition of default used for intemal credit risk management purposes. The default definition
has been applied consistently to model the Probability of default (PDY), Exposure at default (EAD) and
Loss given default (LGD) throughout the Fund’s expectad loss calculations.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inpuls, assumplions and estimation technigues

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month {12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be
credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the PD, EAD and LGD, definad
as follows:
« The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per
"Definition of default and credit-impaired assets” above), either over the next 12 months (12M
PDY, or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD)Y of the obligation.
= EAD is based on the current exposure. This is because the Fund usually provides uncommitted
facilities and lcans for specific purposes that can be monitored. If a borrower requests another
dishursement on a facility, this provides a credit Intervention point to ensure that the
conditions of the disbursement have been met and the required security has been provided.
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Page 19
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)
Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumplions and estimation fechnigues foontinued)

+ The Fund does not provide overdraft type revolving facilities, which does not require an
intervention point by the Fund and hence does not include remaining undrawn facilities in the
calculation of EAD. Despite the above, there are a small number of facilities that have been
provided to clients on a committed basis. In this case, if the facilities are not fully drawn at
year end, the Fund uses the facility limit, and not the EAD, in the calculation of ECL.

+ LGD represents the Fund's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD
wvaries by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or ather
credit support, LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of
default (EAD).

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD at each review date and for each individual
exposure. These three components are multiplied to determine an ECL.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying the S&P maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on 2 portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data from S&P and is assumed
to be the same across all assets within 2 portfolio and credit grade band. The S&P model is supported
by historical analysis.

For the 12-month and lifetime EAD in place laid down for the Fund uses the current exposure since it
provides uncommitted facilities and has conditions to subsequent drawdowns (intervention points)
that allows the fund not to disburse if conditions have not been met or the credit quality of the
borrower or transaction has deteriorated.

Forward-locking economic information is implicitly included in PD and LGD by ensuring that the rating
(PO} and loss rates (LGD) reflect the general outlook for the specific loan. The assumptions underlying
the ECL calculation = such as how collateral values change etc. = are monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis. There have been no significant changes in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the reporting period.
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Page 20
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Forward-looking fnformalion fncorporated fn the ECL assessments

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The
forward-looking information, its related economic variables and associated impact on the PD, EAD and
LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judament has been applied in this process. The fund's
macro-economic outlocks is incorporated in the counterparties credit rating and include specific
forward-looking economic considerations for the indvidual counterparty. The credit rating thus reflects
the adjusted counterparty risk for the fund’s expectation of future economic and business conditions.
Further adjustments based on point-in-time market date, are made to the LGDs assigned to each
counterparty to produce PDs and ECL representative of existing market conditions.

Sensitivity analysis of forward-looking impact on IFRS 9 provision,

Management assessad and considered the sensitivity of the IFRS 9 provision against the forward
looking economic conditions at a counterparty level. The review of each dient was performed on a
monthly basis to determine if a SICR event has occurred relating to macro-economic outlooks.
The S&F credit rating was also adjusted to incorporate forward-looking information. The weighting is
reflected in both the determination of significant increase in credit risk, as well as the measurement
of the resulting IFRS 9 provision for the individual counterparty. Therefore, the impact of forward-
looking economic conditions is embedded into the total IFRS 9 provision for each counterparty and
cannot be stressed or separated out of the overall IFRS 9 provision.  Due to the short-term maturity
the exposure has limited sensitivity to the short term macro-economic outlooks

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method.
(a) Amortised Cost using the Effective Interest Rate Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year, The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout
the expected life of the financial instrument, or, when approgrizte, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Fund estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all facility fees and drawdown fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that there are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Facility fees and drawdown fees range from
0.5% to 1.5% of the disbursed amount.
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Page 21
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interast Income (Continued)

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial assets, except for financial assets that are in stage 2. For stage 3 financial assets interest
is calculated by applying the effective rate to the amortised cost (i.e, net of the expected credit loss
provision).

Service Fee Income

Service fes income relates to Shariah Murabaha compliant deals on which interest is not charged.
Service fees are recognised on 2 monthly basis and are measured as a percentage of the loan
receivable,

Management and Performance fees

The Investment Manager receives a fixed fee of 2.080 par annum of the Net Assst Value of the Fund
plus a performance fee of 20% of the annual increase in the Net Asset Value of the Fund subject to
a hurdle rate equal to LIBOR. In the event that the annual increase in the Net Asset Value is less than
LIBOR, no Performance Fee is payable. Once the hurdle rate is exceeded, the Performance Fee is
payable on the entire performance. The fixed fee is calculated and charged monthly in arrears and
the Performance Fee is calculated and charged quarterly in arrears. The Performance Fee is calculated
in a manner which ensures that appropriate adjustments are made in order to accommodate the
inflows and outflows of capital during the course of each fiscal year resulting from subscriptions and
redemptions. Once managemant and performance fees have been crystalized in the fund, it is at the
discretion of the Manager to pay it over.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income on an
accruals basis and in accordance with the relevant agreements.

Foreign currency transiation
{a) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Fund's financial statements are measured using the US Dollar as, in the opinion
of Management, the US Dollar best represents the primary economic environment in which the Fund
operates, The Fund has also adopted the US Dollar as its presentation currency. The US Dollar has
been determined as the functional currency s this is the predominant currency of the investor base.

(b} Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies, which occurred during the year, are translated into US Dollars at
the rate prevailing on the transaction date. Assets and liabilities in forsign currencies are translated
ita US Dollars at the rate prevailing at the year-end date. Profits and losses on foreign currency
translations are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair valus
was determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9
Financial instruments

Financiai assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Classification and initial measurement

From 1 January 2018, IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets,
financial liabilities and contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. The Fund classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories, as set out in IFRS 9:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (OCT)
or through profit or loss), and;
» those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entitys business model for managing the financial assels and the
contractual terms of the cash flows, IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories regarding held to maturity, loans and
receivables and available for sale. In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through (FVOCI), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding, This assessment is
referrad to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument. level,

The Fund’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. At initial recognition, the Fund
measures a financial asset at its f2ir value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FYPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continuved)

(b} Subsequent measurement

» Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from the financial
assets Is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition s recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in gains/{losses) on
derecognition. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss. The Fund’s financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, other receivable and cash
and cash eguivalents which are subseguently measured as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
intersst method and are presented net of expected credit losses.

Cash and cash eguivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or lass that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

(c) Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Fund assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

In the Fund, there three types of financial assets that are subject to the expacted credit losses model:

» Loans and recenvable
« Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flaws will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(c) Impairment (continued)

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). Credit
impaired financial assets are those for which one or more events that have a detrimental effect on
the estimated future cash flows have already occurred. This is equivalent to the point at which an
incurred loss would have been recognised under IAS 39,

These financial assets would be in Stage 3 and lifetime expected losses would be recognised. As per
the repayment terms, the account receivable is to be repayable on demand and the contractual period
over which the expected impairment losses should be measured is the very short period needed to
transfer the cash once demanded. The likelihood of default over 12 months would thus be equivalent
to that over the life of the instrument.

(d} Modification of financial assets

The Fund sometimes modifies the terms of loans provided to customers due o commercial
renegotiations, or for distressed loans, with a view to maximising recovery.

The ECL is calculated before terms are modified.

Distress restructures

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term arrangements, payment holidays and
payment forgivenass. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in
the judgement of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue, These policies are
kept under continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly applied to term loans.

Non distressed restructures

In instances whera the Fund reschedule a credit agreement not In distress, the contractual cash flows
are negotiated with the client but the effective interest rate remains the same and therefore no gain
or losses are recognized.

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessad at the reporting date and compared
with the risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial
and s0 does not result in derecognition of the original asset. The Fund monitors the subsequent
performance of modified assets. The Fund may determine that the credit risk has significantly
improved after restructuring, so that the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL) to
Stage 1 (12-month ECL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)

Financial instruments (‘continved)
Financial assels (continued)

(&) Curing

Continuous assessment is required to determine whether the conditions that led to a loan receivable
being considered to be credit impaired (ie.stage 3) still exist. Distress restructured loan receivables
that no longer qualify as credit impaired remain within stage 3 for a minimum period of six months
(ie. Six full consecutive monthly payments per the terms and conditions). In the case of financial
assefs with guarterly or longer dated repayment terms, the classification of a financial asset out of
stage 3 may be made subsequent to an evaluation by the Cradit Committee, such evaluation will take
into account gualitative factors in addition to compliance with payment terms and conditions of the
agreement. Qualitative factors include compliance with covenants and compliance with exdsting
financial assets terms and conditions.

Where it has been determine that a loan receivable no longer meets the criteria for SICR, the financial
assef will be moved from stage 2 back to stage 1 prospectively.

(f) Write — Off policy

The Fund provides for financial assets, in whole, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts
and has concluded there s no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (i) where the Fund's
recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recavering in full,

The Fund may fully provide for financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity.

The Fund still seeks to recover amounts it is legally owe in full, but which have been partially provided
for, due to no reasonable expectation of full recovery, The net impact after credit mitigation was USD
1,137,738,

Only when the Fund has exhausted all practical and legal efforts to recover a loan and the Fund's legal
advisors have advised that there is no expectation of any further recovery, does the Fund write off an
asset in full,

The Fund may fully provide for financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity, The
putstanding contractual amounts of such assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2018
was USD 1,651,824, Attempt have been done via enforcement / court judgement and enforcement of
assets, However, given that the company has been liguidated and that the only available means of
recovery was to pursue the liguidators which appears to be uneconomic, Management have been
advised to provision for the full amount and write off.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(g) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Fund of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of financial position) when:

+ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+ The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either {a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controd of the asset

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Fund continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of its continuing invalvement. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated
liability, The transferred asset and the associated lisbility are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Fund has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
assat and the maximum amount of consideration that the Fund could be required to repay.

Financral Kabiities

(a) Classification and initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or at amortised cost. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case

of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Fund's
financial liabilities consist of accounts payables only and are carried at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting policies following adoption of IFRS 9 (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

(b} Subsequent measurement

Payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period. They are recognised inibally at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(c) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or medification is treated as the derecognition of the onginal habilty and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts i recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Cash & Cash Eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts,

Loan Recevables

Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market,

Loans receivable are recognised on the implementation date specified within the relevant 1can contract
and derecognised at the repayment date also specified within the same loan contract unless a further
superseded contract has adjusted the conditions related to the repayment date.

Loans receivable are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Loans receivable are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate  method, less any
impairment.

Specific provisions are made against identified doubtful advances. The Fund assesses on each
valuation date (monthly) whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets & impaired.

Trade and other payables

Trade and cther payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently stated at amortised
oost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Previous Accounting policies before IFRS 9 implementation
Financial instruments (continued)

Accounting policies applicable to both 2018 and 2017.

Sale and repurchase agreements

Barak has entered into repo agreements as part of its financing activities, Loans ceded under
participation agreements are disclosed as loans payable. Underlying loans ceded under repo
agreements are not derecognised by Barak. The differences between the purchase and sale prices are
treated as interest and accrued using the effective interest method.,

Redesmable participating shares

The Fund issues two classes of redeemable shares (B1 and B2), which are redeemable at the holder's
option and have identical rights but different terms such as locking period which is 3 years for B2 and
listed on Irish Stock Exchange which is only applicable to Bl share class. Such shares are classified as
financial liabilities as at 31st Decamber 2018. B2 class was only issuad in 2017 financial year.

The redeemable participating shares can be put back to the Fund on each dealing day, after giving
three months written notice, for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Fund's net asset value.
The net asset value of the Fund will be equivalent to all the assets less all the liabilities of the Fund,
which are attributable to the particular segregated portfolio, at the relevant valuation day. The
valuation date is the first business day of each month. The redeemable participating share is carried
at the redemption amount that is payable at the year-end date if the shareholder exercised his right
to put the share back to the Fund. The redeemable participating shares are non-voting and may be
issued in different classes. Redeemable participating shares are issued and redeemed at prices based
on the Fund's net asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemption.

Capital contribuiion received in advance
Capital contributions received in advance are subscriptions received after the first of December but

before the first of January of the following year. Subscriptions are only effective on the first day of
the month.

Effective standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards applicable
for the first time on 1 January 2018, other than IFRS 9.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments

Annual improvements 1o IFRS's 2014 - 2016 cycle

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

L

These amendments have no impact.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective. Certain
effective new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published
that are mandatory for the fund’s accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019 or later
periods but which the fund has not early adopted, are listed below. Management assessed the
axpacted impact to be Immatenal.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Number

Executive summary

Amendment to IAS 1,
‘Presentation of financial
statements’ and I4S 8,
‘Accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and
errors’ on the definition of
material.

Annual periods
beginning on
or after 1
January 2020,

These amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 and consaquential
amendments to other IFRSs:

* use a consistent definition of materiality through
IFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting;

« clarify the explanation of the definition of
material; and

« incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about
immaterial information.

The amended definition is:

“Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expectad to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial staterments make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.”

Amendments to IAS 19,
‘Employee benefits’ on plan
amendment, curtailment or
settlement.

aAnnual periods
on ar after 1
January 2019

(issued
February
2018)

These amendments require an entity to:

Use updated assumptions to determine current service
cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after
a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and
Recognisa in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or
@ gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus
(recognised or unrecognised), This reflects the substance
of the transaction, because a surplus that has been used
to settle an obligation or provide additional benefits is
recoversd. The impact on the assat ceiling is recognised
in other comprehensive income, and it is not reclassified
to profit or loss The impact of the amendments is to
confirm that these effects are not offset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ﬁwnamﬁmnmiwm%émhmgmmngmmm but not effective

Mumber Effective date Executive summary

Amendment to IFRS 3, Annual periods | This amendment revises the definition of a

‘Business combinations’ on or after 1| business. According to feedback received by the
January 2020 | 1ASB, application of the current guidance is

Definition of a business commonly thought to be too complex, and it
(Published results in too many transactions qualifying as
October 2018) | business combinations. More acquisitions are

likely to be accounted for as asset acquistions.

To be considered a business, an acquisition would
have to include an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The new guidance
provides a framework to evaluate when an input
and a substantive process are present (including
for early stage companies that have not
generated outputs). To be a business without
outputs, there will now need to be an organised
workforoe.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MNumber Executive summary

Amendments to IFRS 9 - Annual periods | The narrow-scope amendment covers two
‘Financial instruments’ on beginning  on | jssyes:

prepayment featuras with or after 1

negative compensation and January 2019 + The amendments allow companies to
modification of financial measure particular prepayable
liabilities, financial assets with so-called

negative compensation at amortised
cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if 2 specified
condition is met—instead of at fair
value through profit or loss. It is likely
to have the biggest impact on banks
and other financial services entities,,

How to account for the modification of a financial
liability. The amendment confirms that most such
modifications will result in immediate recognition
of @ gain or loss. This is a change from common
practice under TAS 39 today and will affect all
kinds of entities that have renegotiated
borrowings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

El‘fecﬂve date

IFRS Annual pericds | This standard replaces the current guidance in TAS
16 - Leases beginning on 17 and is a far reaching change in accounting by
or after 1 lesseas in particular.
January 2019
- garlier Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a
application distinction between a finance lease {(on balance

permitted if shest) and an operating lease (off balance sheet).
IFRS 15is also | IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease

applied. liability reflecting future lease payments and a
‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts.
(published The IASE has included an optional exemption for

January 2016) | certain short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets; however, this exemption can only be
applied by lessees.

For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same.
However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on
the definition of a lease (as well as the guldance on
the combination and separation of contracts),
lessors will also be affected by the new standard.

At the very least, the new accounting model for
lessees is expected to impact negotiations between
lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to controd the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17, ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4,
"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease’, 5IC 15, ‘Operating Leases — Incentives” and
SIC 27, *Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not effective.
MNumber Effective date Executive summary
IFRS 17, 'Insurance contracts” | Annual periods | The IASB issued IFRS 17, 'Insurance contracts’, and
beginning on | thereby started a new epoch of accounting for
or after 1 insurers. Whereas the current standard, IFRS 4,
January 2021 allows Insurers to use their local GAAP, IFRS 17
defines clear and consistent rules that  will
Early significantly increase the comparability of financial
application is statements. For insurers, the transition to IFRS 17
permitted for will have an impact on financial statements and on
entities that key performance indicators.
apply IFRS 5,
"Financial Under IFRS 17, the general model requires entities
Instruments’, |to measure an insurance contract at initial
and IFRS 15, | recognition at the total of the fulfilment cash flows
‘Revenue from | (comprising the estimated future cash flows, an
Contracts with | adjustment to reflect the time value of money and
Customers’, at | an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk)
orbeforethe | and the contractual service margin., The fulfilment
date of initial | cash flows are remeasured on a current basis each
application of | reporting period. The unearned profit (contractual
IFRS 17. service margin) is recognised over the coverage
period.
(published May
2017) Aside from this general model, the standard
provides, as a simplification, the premium allocation
approach. This simplified approach is applicable for
certain types of contract, including those with a
coverage period of one year or less.
For insurance contracts with direct participation
features, the variable fee approach applies. The
variable fee approach is a variation on the general
model. When applying the variable fee approach,
the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the
underlying items Is included In the contractual
service margin. As a consequence, the fair value
changes are not recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they occur but over the remaining
life of the contract.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

‘Investments in assotiates
and joint ventures’ = long-
term interests in associates
and joint ventures,

[ Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards, inter ?sﬂﬁawwmm
. Mumber Effective date Ememti".re surnmar;r
Amendments to TAS 28, Annual periods | The amendments clarified that companies

beginning  on | account for long-term interests in an associate or
or after 1] joint venture, to which the equity method is not

January 2019 | applied, using IFRS 9.
(published The amendments are effective from 1 January
October 2017) | 2019, with early application permitted

Annual improvements cyde
2015-2017

Annual periods | These amendments include minor changes to:
beginning on « [FRS 3, ‘Business combination® - a

or after 1 company remeasures its previously

January 2019 held interest in a joint operation
when it obtains contrdl of the

(published business.

December « [FRS 11'Joint arrangements’, - a

2017 company does not remeasure its

previously held interest in a joint
operation when it obfains joint
control of the business,

« JAS 12 Income taxes - The
amendment clarified that the income
tax consequences of dividends on
financial instruments classified as
equity should be recognised
according to where the past
transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were recognised.

« IAS 23 Borrowing costs’ - a company
treats as part of general borrowings
any bormowing originally made to
develop an asset when the asset is
ready for s intended use or sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

International ﬁmmia_l'@ﬁmiﬂﬁagﬁmﬂ it

ver 2018 year-end
Mumber Effective date Executive summary

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over Annual periods | IFRIC 23 provides a framework to consider,
Income tax treatments beginning o1 | recognise and measure the accounting impact of
or after 1 tax uncertainties. The Interpretation provides
January 2013 specific guidance in several areas where previously
1AS 12 was silent. The Interpretation also explains
when to reconsider the accounting for a tax
uncertainty. Most entities will have developed a
model to account for tax uncertzinties in the
absence of specific guidance in IAS 12, Thesa
models might, in some circumstances, be
inconsistent with IFRIC 23 and the impact on tax
accounting could be material. Management should
assess the existing models against the specific
guidance in the Interpretation and consider the
impact on income tax accounting.

Published 7
June 2017)

4. Cash & Cash Equivalents

2018 2m7
uso ush

Cash at bank 23,112,985 31,035,618
Fixed deposit 2,010,281 61,596,172
Call deposit 109,767 523,690
Margin deposit 36,601 1,980,291

As at 31 December 2018, the cash was fully deployed thus leaving the minimum balance reguirement
as prescribed in the offering memorandum. The cash and cash equivalents are measured at
amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value. Cash & cash equivalents are
classified as stage 1.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

5. Loans Receivable

2018 2017

uso UsD

Gross loans receivable 1,129,352,996 829,222,010
ECL/IAS 39 impairmant provision (64,370,667) (23,665,070)

1,064,982,329 505,556,940

2018 2017
uso uso
Gress loans receivable — Maximurm exposure to credit risk 1,129,352,996 529,222,010
Credit risk exposures fully mitigated through co-funding
agreements (162,802,657) (59,357,080)
Maximum exposure for which a credit loss can be incurred for
the Fund 966,550,339 765,864,920

The loans payable were agreements which relate to deals which have been co-financed. The risk and
returns that the fund bears, is effectively mirrored proportionately back to the co-financier as part of
the participation agreement, with the underlying loan pledged as collateral. A participating certificate
is signed by both parties for each and every deal entered into where all commercial and legal terms
are agreed.

During the year, there were new co- financiers who participated into the fund with repayment made
as and when the borrowers are repaying their loan.

As at December 2018, the market value of the underlying loan receivables supporting the agreements
amounts to USD 331,787 477 (2017: USD 371,977,682), of which 49% (2017: 20°%) is subject to co-
financing and therefore the credit loss balance have been reduced.

The co-funding agreements have been assessad as a credit mitigation/enhancement in term of
measuring the ECL on the gross loan recejvables. The Fund is virtually certain that the credit losses
on these portion of the aross loans will be reimburse by the co- funders as the fund will derecognize
the liability to the co-funder at the point of write-off. The loans that were co- funded were considenad
for derecognition, however due to non-contractual reimbursement received the pass through criteria
was not met and the loans were not derecognized.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED

5. Loans Receivable (continued})

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Fund’s maximum exposure
to credit losses 853,239,056 261,050,954 52,260,329 966,550,339
ECL {15,170,247) {16,595,035)  (32,605,386) (64,370,668)
Net exposure after co funder
mitigation and ECL 638,068,809 244,455,919 19,654,943 902,179,671
Provision for credit losses
Impact on adoption of IFRS 9 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Provision for doubt debt as at 31/12/2017 - - 23,665,070 23,665,070
Prowvision for Expecbed Credit Losses on 1
January 2018 8,849,628 6,786,889 - 15,636,517
Increase in ECL B.849,628 6,786,889 - 15,636,717
Reimbursement 4,085,558 5,504,442 = 9,600,000

Impact on "Net Assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares

on 1 January 2018 4,754,070 1,282,447 - 6,036,517
Less guarantee 4,754,070 1,282,447 = 6,036,517
Impact " = = =

2018 2017
Frovision for Expected Credit Losses on 1 January 2018 39,301,587 10,026,779
Prowvision for ECL on 31 December 2018 64,370,667 23,665,070
Increase / (decrease) in ECL 25,069,080 13,638,291

4 i

The adoption of IFRS 9 on 01* January 2018 had no impact on the "Net assets attributable to the
unitholders’. On the date of adoption, the provision for the overall losses increased with USD 15.6
million but was offset by the following credit enhancements/mitiaation:

BFML reimbursing the fund USD 9.6 million
BFML issuing a financial guarantee of USD 6.0 million, which expired before year end.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINAMNCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLID
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 {CONTINUED
5. Loans Receivable {continued}
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Credit Impalred
12 Month Expected Credit Lifetime Expected Financial Assets
Gross Loan Balances Net of Co-funded Lasses Credit Losses
Portion Todal
Cpening belance at 1 January 2018 570,914, 250 158 625,112 30,325,328 FEA A6 9
Income recognised 106,449,416 22,847,066 6,215,542 135,512,084
Transfer to lifetime expected credit losses {80,319,189) 60,315,189 - -
Transfer ko credit impained ssseks [17,638,619) d 17,638,619
Financial assets transfarred o 5TF 2,338,753 5,287,244 - 7508987
Financial assets ransfarred from STF (37,948,837) (2597 202F = [0, 546,533)
Financial aszets originated 420,836,724 27,803,267 8210 448,823,080
Financlal assets repaid (331,393,572) (12313320 (8,630,521) (353,337 215)
Writamofs E E (1,371,738} (1,371,738)
Oasing balance as at 31 December 213 A53,239,055 2a1 050,554 52,260,329 -
Fage 39

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 {CONTINUED
5. Loans Recelvable (continuwed )

The impact of moving batwsen stage 1 and stage 2 on the on the BCL B limited, dus o the awerage maturity of tha loans receivable being kess than 12 months.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Credit risk exxposures fully mitigated throwgh co - 12 Month Expected Lifietime Expected Credit Impaired
funding agreements Credit Losses Cradit Losses. Financial Assets Total
53,257,060

Cipening balance at 1 Janvary 2018 33,054,408 25,262, 547 1,008,084
Closng balance as et 31 December 2018 32438497 1,117,377 162,602 658

158,441,434

Increase/[decrease) in co-funding {22,048,750) 103,445,568

135,382,025 112,293
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FIMANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO
MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED
5. Loans Recelvable [continuwed )
Provision for credit losses (continued )
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Credit Impaired
12 Month Expected  Lifetime Expected  Financlal Assets
Provision for Credit Lossas Credit Losses Credit Lossas
Total
Cpening balance at 1 January 2018 8,549,628 G, 706,859 23,655,000 39,300,587
[ncoeme recognised 2,548,637 1,065,534 310,193 3,528,414
Transler (o lifelime expecied credil Insses (473,260) 3,740,540 = 3,266,580
Tramsfer tn credit impained assets [483,538) = 10,035,303 {5,541, 365}
Financlal assets tansferred to 5TF 214,403 1,285,806 - 1,500,310
Finaneial aassts anslared from STF [BET G500 {458 547] = 11,166,197}
Incresse/{decrease) in BOL 455,287 2,623,138 - 3.078,926
Financial assats criginabed 9,268,032 1,687,708 - 11,155,740
Financial pssets repaid [4,540,292) [300,184) (23,442) {4,063,218)
Writa-offs® - - (2,370,738) {1,371,738)
Clesing balanoe as at 31 Decemnber 2018 15,170,247 16,595,035 32,605,380 4,370,668

“*During 2013 the gross lnans recelvable balance from Frozen and Pack were written off and derecognized as a stage 3 loan receivabia, The credit loss was fuly relmburse
by 87ML. The reimbursement was already taken Into account in the opening takance of the provision for credit losses. Therefore, the write of in the table for provision
for cradlk losses reprasert the loss In the statement of profit and loss.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

5. Loan Receivables {Continued)
There were no distressed restructures in the 2018 financial year.

The asset under management has increased based on the additional subscription from investors which
were eventually deployed to finance the unlisted debt securities.

Unlisted debt securities comprised of asset backed debt In agricultural trade finance and food-related
transactions that constitute the primary business activity of the segregated portfolios. Contractually
these transactions were set up In the form of repurchass agreements and structured working capital
loans. Collateral obtained by the Fund under standard repurchase agreements are not recognized
because the Borrower retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the predetermined
repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore not met by the Borrower. The
repurchase agreements and the structured working capital loans are calculated based on a desired
transaction yield taking into account counterparty risk and is in most cases short dated. As such the
transactions are considered to be financing transactions backed by collateral which can be in the form
of physical stocks or floating charge such as debtors assignment and is dassified as loans recejvables.,
Interest is charged at a rate specified as per specific financing contract. Interest rates range between
&% and 27% par annum and are compounded in terms of each relevant contract, The loans receivable
are measured at amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value,

Following implementation of IFRS 9 in 2018, it was agreed that Bank Fund Management Ltd (Fund
Manager) will subsidise the provision in order to reduce the burden on the investors. An amount of
UsD 9,600,000 was subsidisad in 2018.

Barak purchased the Standard & Poors (S&P) Small & Medium Enterprises (SME) model for rating
(Probability of Default/ PD) and loss given default (LGD) purposes, Although the Fund has various
types of borrowers and loans in the portfolio, the team chose the SME model as this applies to the
majority of the portfolio and was the most appropriate fit, in Barak's opinion, for the types of
counterparties Barak the S&P ratings methodology and would produce a result similar to what S&P
would publish for the counterparties they rate. Barak's options for rating a portfolio of deals were
either to purchase a rating model, like the S&P SME model that we did, or develop an intermal model
based on Barak's prior experience with defaults in the portfolio. Unfortunately, Barak does not have a
statistically significant portfolio of counterparties or default history to male such a model viable or

acceptable.

For PD purposes, the S&P SME model has quantitative and qualitative aspects. For the guantitative
part, we capture financial information into the model from the latest financial information we have,
preferably avdited financial statements, although we sometimes use management accounts or draft
financials. This requires a proper understanding of the financials to determine how to input items into
the model. The income statement and balance sheet are usually input in full but the critical tems, like
EBITDA, debt and equity are used by the model to calculate certain debt ratios, which ultimately
determine the rating. For the gualitative part, there are guestions on the quality of management,
governance, access to liquidity ete., which could improve or downgrade the rating. Barak also answer
the qualitative questions with "N/A" such that the ulomate rating from the model is just a quantitative
rating. In Inputting a counterparty into the model, we also have to capture the industry and country
and we cant continue without these parameters. The model also incorporates a Soversign
Intervention Owverlay, which is only applicable if the counterparty rating is better than the rating of
the country of risk. If this is the case, the counterparty rating may be a reduced by a few notches in
line with the country rating (although not capped to the country rating).
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

5. Loan Receivables (Continued)
Barak, under certain circumstances, rate a deal based on guarantors, insurance providers or offtakers.

For LGD purposes, Barak captured the loan information and the collateral associated with the facility
into the model. In this part of the model, the ranking of the loan is relevant (senior, subordinated
etc.) and we have to note the amount of loan that rank ahead, pari-passu with and/ or subordinate
to the facility. In addition to loading loan specific collateral, the model also requires the input of
collateral pledged to other pari-passu loan. The values were inputted for collateral depends on the
nature of the collateral. For working capital (stock, debtors), the full value per invoice and debtors
according to the agreements (for e.9. debtors might be < 90 days and specific debtors only). If nat
working capital, values as per audited financials were used independent valuations for assets like
property, equipment etc are usad.

The final output of the model B a rating from CCC- to AA4 and an LGD percentage, for example a
rating of B+ with an LGD of 20%. The information above is usually input by a credit analyst and
checked, verified and approved by one of the two senior cradit executives in the business.

The 2 senior credit executives in the team also have the ability to override the model if they dont
believe that the rating and/ or LGD is fair or justified. In most cases, these overrides have been to
adjust the rating and/ or LGD to a more consenvative number (i.e to increase the ECL).

6. Other Receivables

2018 2017
uso uso
Other receivables 2,259,671 4,783,770

The other receivables are measured at amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value.

7. Accrued Expenses

2018 2017

usp usD

Management fee payable 169,045 3,898,607
Performance fees payable 81,946 3,955,549
Audit fee payable 152,500 59,998
Administration fee payable 90,708 20,280
Custodian fee payable 7173 19,823
Directors fee payable - 6,066
Other accruals 4,743 23,109
506,115 7,983,432

The accrued expenses are measured at amortised cost.

value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(CONTINUED)

8. Loans Payable
2018
uso
Counterparty 1 55,551,908
Counterparty 2 23,207,276
Counterparty 3 3,137,100
Counterparty 4 16,000,000
Counterparty 5 33,220,336
Counterparty & 22,644,953
Counterparty 7 2,333,014
Interest accrued 6,708,070
Due to Co-funders 162,802,657
Other loans payable 10,693,872
173,496,529

2017
usp

42,354,879

3,137,100
7,000,000

1,828,658

The loans payable are measured at amortised cost. This is considered to approximate the fair value,

Refer to note 5 for detail on co funding.

2018

uso

Loans payable as at 01 Jan 72,589,545

Proceeds received from finance obtained 184,435,728

Repayments of finance obtained (88,465,105)
Interest Adjustment:

Interest charged on loan payable 11,775,101

Interest paid on loans payable (6,838,740)

4,936,361

Loans payable as at 31 December 173,496,529

153/226

2017

USD
98,595,843
79,537,042
(102,872,514)

7,320,262
(9,991,088)



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooaooao

Page 44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

9. Interest Income

2018 2017
uso LsD
Interest income ralating to loans receivable 135,512,024 828,582,455

During the current financial vear facility fee income USD 5,016,385 (2017: USD 4,749,115),
drawdown fee income USD 30,750 (2017: USD 1,537,215), upfront fee USD 363,620 (2017: NIL),
origination fee income USD 34,836 (2017 USD 44,150) and interest on placement USD 344,090
{2017: NIL) was included in interest income.

The portion of the loan origination fees that relate to the creation of a financial asset are amortised
over the term of the lcan on an effective interest basis.

10. Service Fee Income

2018 2007
uso UsD
Service Fee Income - 971,703
Service fee income relates to revenue income from shariah deals.
11. Other Income
2018 2017
usb LUsD
Structuring Fee Income 47,678 238,359
Other income 79,892 825,071

12. Interest Expense

2018 2017

uso LUsD

Counterparty 1 5,412,537 5,854,850
Other interest expense 6,362,564 1,465,412

11,775,101 7,320,262

Other interest expense relates to the other co funders to the fund as described in note 8 (Loan
payable)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

13. Other Operating Expenses

2018 207

usp LsD

Audit fees 206,575 57,210
Administration fees 287,134 180,258
Custodian fees 2,752 2,536
Directors fees 37,016 20,709
Listing fees 3,600 3938
Documentation fees 175,096 221,820
Broker fees 224,009 233,625
Commission expensea 34,617 45,600
Prafessional fees 721,093 158,824
Bank charges 96,405 37,468
Cther operating expenses 800,645 80,741

2,588,942 1,042,768

14. Taxation

Under current Cayman Islands Laws, the Fund is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands
on either income or capital gains. Accordingly, no tax provision or liability has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements. The Fund may incur withholding tax imposed by certaln countries
on investment income. The Fund did not incur any withholding tax in 2018,

15. Redeemable Participating Shares

The Fund is represented by the redeemable shares issued. These shares are issued as class Bl and
B2 shares, both of which carry equal rights.

The Fund strives to invest the subscription received on the issue of redeemable shares in investments
that meet the Fund's investment objectives while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet shareholder
redemptions.

The Fund does not have any externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

15. Redeemable Participating Shares (continued)

The authorised share capital of the Company is USD 20,000,100 divided into 100 Non-Participating
voting Management Shares of no par value and 20,000,000 Redeemable Participating non-voting
Shares of no par value. One Management Share of the Company has besn issued to the Investments
Manager for a total contribution of UsD 1.

The below table outlines the share activity of the Fund for the year ended 31 December:

Opening Closing
number of number of
redeemable Redeemable Redeemable redeemable
2018 shares Shares Issued Shares Redeemed shares
Class B1 2,625,681 644,447 (531,660) 2,738,468
Class B2 628,256 = (36,346) 601,910
3,263,937 644,447 (568,006) 3,340,378
2017
Class B1 1,309,336 1,763,636 (447,291) 2,625,681
Class B2 - 647,290 (9,034) 638,256
1,309,336 2,410,926 (456,325) 3,263,937
Net asset value per share 2018 2017
Class Bl 303.05 282.56
Class B2 111.48 103.94
16. Cash flows from operating activities
2018 27
uso LUsD
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of participating
shares from operations 61,705,583 45,424,029
Expected credit loss 25,069,080 13,638,291
Interest expense 11,775,101 7,320,262
Interest Income (135,512,024) (88,582 455)
(36,962,260) {22,199,873)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

17. Segment Information

The identification of reportable segments are determined based on a consideration of services,
geographical areas, economic and regulatory environment. The business is widely distributed with no
reliance on any major customers. The business sells a single product enables clients to conduct
operation, which can be in a form of repurchase financing agreements or structured working capital
loan agresments. Management assesses information relating to the performance of this single
segment on multiple levels and from multiple perspectives. Whilst data analysis facilitates the detailed
evaluations of any aspect of the business, all elements are regarded as interconnectaed and no part of
the business can be truly regarded as separable from the rest. Collateral assessment for a repo
agreement or structured working capital loan agreements are conducted at a holistic level of the
business. Accordingly, any perspective or level of the business reported on is regarded as having met
the aggregation criteria regarding products and services, type or class of customers, distribution
method and common regulatory environment. Cwver and above the interest charged, a facility fee is
often being charged to the client as well to boost return to the fund and this form part an integral
part of the effective interast rate,

18. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

(a) Management fees

The Fund has an Investment Management Agreement with Barak Fund Management Limited (the
‘Investment Manager”). Pursuant to this agreement the Investment Manager is entitled to receive a
management fee of 2% per annum of the net asset value of the Segregated Portfolio payable manthly
in arrears. The Net Asset Value (MAV) as at 31st December 2018 stands at USD 896,989,081 (2017:
UsSD 808,253,503).

Barak Structured Trade Finance SP: The total management fees for the year amounted to USD
17,702,752 (2017: USD 11,836,236), with USD 169,045 (2017: USD 3,898,607} in outstanding
accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at the end of the year.

(b} Performance fees

The performance fee is calculated and accrued in respect of each 1 year period (the "calculation year")
ending March, June, September and December. For sach calculation, the performance fee is equal to
20% of the amount by which net asset value reflects a rate of retum that exceeds the hurdle rate
equal to LIBOR and a High Water Mark. The hurdle rate is the net asset value at the time of issue of
that unit or, if issued in a previous calculation year, the high water mark brought forward, increased
by the three month UK LIBOR rate. The performance fee in respect of each calculation year is
calculated by reference to the net assat value before deduction of any accrued parformance fee,

Total performance fees for the year amounted to USD 15,426,398 (2017: USD 11,356,001) with
USD 81,946 (2017: USD 3,955,549) in outstanding accrued fees due to the Investment Manager at
the end of the year.

The fund pays a performance fee of 20% of the annual increase in the Net asset Value of the fund to

the Investment Manager. The net asset value stands at USD 896,989,090 (2017: USD 808,253,503)
at the end of the year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

18. Related Party Transactions (continued)

{c) Administration fees

Maitland Fund Services (BVI) Limited (the "Administrator”) is the appointed Administrator of the Fund.
The Administrator is entitled to receive a minimum administration fee amounting to EUR 35,000 per
annum for the Fund. Administraticn fees are payable monthly in arrears at 12 base points per annum
of Met Asset Value on the last business day of that month.

Total administration fees for the year amounted to USD 287,134 (2017: USD 180,298), with LISD
90,708 (2017 USD 20,280) in outstanding accrued fees due to the Administrator at the end of the
year,

(d) Related party receivables/payables in the

Segregated Portfolio at 31 December 2018: 2018 2017
UsD usD
- Barak Mikopo SP - (186,000)
- Barak Impact Finance SP - 700,000
{e) Transactions between Funds
Barak Impact Finance SP
Loans transferred by Barak Impact Finance SP to Barak
Structured Trade Finance SP
- Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance SP to
Barak Impact Finance SP (15,076,459) (12,674416)

(15,076,459} (12,674,416)

Barak Mikopo SP

Loans transferred by Barak Mikopo SP to Barak Structured 2,202,522

Trade Finance 5P

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance SP to - (78,127,237
Barak Milkopo 5P

2,202,522 (78,127 237)

Barak Asha SP

Loans transferred by Barak Asha SP to Barak Structured Trade

Finance SP 136,231

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance SP to

Barak Asha SP (18,265,688) (100,000}

(18,129,457) (100,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

18. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(e) Transactions between Funds

Barak Ibdar Shariah SP

Loans transferred by Barak Ibdar Shariah SP to Barak 5,267,244

Structured Trade Finance SP

Loans transferred by Barak Structured Trade Finance SP (7,204,393) (33,951,836)
to Barak Ibdar SP

(1,937,149) (33,951,836)

BFML holds 20,357 units in the fund in 2018 and 2017, Included in capital contribution received in
advance is USD 19M received from BFML. Refer to disclosure note 5 and note 19.3 for more detailed
on reimbursement and credit enhancement relating to BFML.

19. Financial Risk Management

The Fund's activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (specifically fair value
interast rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, currency risk and liquidity risk. The
Fund’s overall risk management programme focuses on the evaluation of credit risk and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund’s financial performance. The Fund has investment
guidelines that st out its overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk
management philosophy, and has established processes to monitor and control such risks.

19.1 Market Risk

The Fund's financial instruments include:
- Loans receivable,
- Cash and cash equivalents, and
- (Other receivables

The Fund's exposure to market risk is limited to interest rate risk.

159/226



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Pags 50
EARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 { CONTINUED)
19. Financial Risk Management {oontinued)

19.2 Interest Rate Risk
Expasure bo inkerast rate risk

The Fund's interest-bearing financial assets axpose & 1o risks associated with the effects of flucwatons in tha prevaiing lewels of market interest rates, The majority of
the Furnd's loans recanable are issued at fived ivberest rabes ang are measured at amortisad cost. The vanale inkerest rated loans are exposes 1o cash flow intanest rate
risk.

The tablz below summarses the Fund’s exposure to interest mie as well as maturity risks, [t indudes the Fund’s a=sets at amortised cost, categonsed by the earlier of
corsractual re-pridng or maturicy dates, and from inception of the contracts, It also shows the Fund's split between fived and warable interest rate securties, as well a=
ran-interest bearing securties. The oans recetvabla are shown net of provision for expected credit Iosses,

1 Dacember 2018
Partion of
total which is
3 Months or Total Portion of batal which is  non - inberest
Assots Iess I to G months  6to 12 months 110 4 years wariahla haaring
Lodans recearcatile 430,311,501 190,855,827 174, 186,685 B8.527, 05 1,064,3682,329 432,617,263 11,279, 344
Chner receivabies 2,259,671 - - - 3,159,671 - 2,233,671
Cash and cash
enuivalants 25260724 - - g 25,360,724 2,000,308 23,259,216
Total assets 457,841 296 190,855,537 374,285,685 8,527,515 1,188,603,787 434,677,593 36,790,533
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19. Financial Risk Management {continued)
19.2 [nterest Rate Risk (continued)
Expogurs £o inbarast rate risk feontinged}
Partion of
Portion of  total which is
3 Months or
1 to & years total which  non - interest
Liakilities less Ito6months  6to 12 months Tokal s yariakile bearing
Arcrued espenses {506,115] - - - {506,115} {506,115}
Laans and b payabies (35,418,545 {E6,563,125) (ETADSGLE)  (4,108843) [173496,525) (77,547,753) (4,008,131}
Cagital contribuban racekad i - - {21,520,0007
advaince {21,520,000] - - {21,520,000)
Torzl Labilties (57,445,080 {€6,563,125) (ErAMGIY  (4,109843) (195,5x2,694y (FR.59.753) (26,034,296)
Tosal inkerest sensitivity gap 408,336,235 124,292,702 ageEmOrr  ESAIELT 436,003,080 357,073 805 10,764, 167

- EREaaamS e EEaEEEE EFSESEEE SEEETEES EFEaEES
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLID

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
19, Financial Risk Manpgement (continued)

19.2 Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Exposire o Interest rate Hsk feontimved)

31 December 2017

YMonthsorless 3to Bmonths B to 12 months Portion of total which Portion of total which is

PAEseTy Total Is wariable non-Interast bearing

Losans: receivabie MO000242 238911787 355,726 811 505,556,340 283 peq 208 1,442 097

Cther raceivables 4,783,770 : : 4,783,770 : 4,783,770

Cash and tath

epuivalents 95,135,770 . . 95,135,770 76,467,796 16,657,974

Total assets 0ATE 28910787 355,735,511 305,476,480 SRS o L
Fage 53

BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLID
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19, Financial Risk Management (continued)

19.2 Inberest Rate Risk {continued)

Exposure to lnterest rate risk foomtinued)

31 Decemizer 2017 (continuad)

Portion of total
Parthan of total which 2 nan-
3 "“‘"I’;" Jto6months  6to 12 months tota) | Whichis interest bearing

Labilities wariable
Accrued expenses (7,583,432) - - (7,983,432} - (7.583432)
Loans and othes payables {13,232 658} {5,063,328) (54,273,358) [72,559,545) . (13,232,858}

Capital contributions receivwed in

advance (16,650, 0000 > . (16,650,000} . [1£,650.0000
Total liakilitics (37 556, 200) (5,083,328} (54.273.358) (97222977} (37 B6E2900
Total interest sensitivity gap LTES6L 49T 131526450 304 462,552 BOB,253,503 359,512,005 (12,970,554}

EmEasE CEEE L E T PP SEnssas SEEEE S EESEEEEE
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)

Mon-interest bearing loans consist of Shariah compliant deals, as well as deals on which transaction
fees are charged in lieu of interast.

The portion of financial assets and liabilities excluding variable rate and non-interest bearing are fixed
rate.

Fair value interest rate risk- fair value movement relating to fixed interest rate and non-
interest bearing loans receivable:

The loans receivable that are issued at fixed interest rates are measured at amortised cost. A 130 up
or down movement in interest rates, with all other variables remaining constant, would not have a
material effect on the fair value.

Cash flow interest rate risk- cash flow movement relating to variable interest rate loans
receivable:

At 31 December 2018, should market interest rates have risen by 1% with all other variables remaining
constant, the increase in net interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD
3,570,798 (2017: USD 3,595,120). If market interest rates had lowered by 1%, the decrease in net
interest received for the year would amount to approximately USD 3,570,798 (2017: USD 3,595,120}

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The Fund does not make use of any hedging instruments to manage interest rate risk. The Fund
analyses the current interest rate scenario and utilising forecasts based on macroeconomic data, uses
this information to price new loans.

19.3 Credit Risk
Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss, should any of the Fund's borrowers and counterparties fail to
fulfil their contractual obligations to the Fund, Credit risk arises mainly from structured loans and
advances, and loan commitments arising from such lending activities.

Credit risk is one of the largest risks for the Fund and management therefore carefully manages its
axpasure to credit risk. The credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit risk
management team which reports regularly to the Chief Risk Officer and Board of Directors. The
maximum credit risk per class of financial instrument is as follows:

2018 2017

usp UsD

Loans receivable 1,064,982,329 805,556,940
Other receivables 2,259,671 4,783,770
Cash and cash equivalents 25,269,724 95,135,770

1,092,511,724 905,476,480
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)

19.3 Credit Risk (continued)

Cradit risk measurement
Loans and advances

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of
a model, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the
passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to
the likelihcod of defaults occurring and of the associated loss ratios. The Fund measures credit risk
using Probability of Default (FD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is
similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9,

Credit risk grading

The Fund uses an external credit risk model purchased from Standard & Poors (S&P) that reflact its
assessment of the PD of individual counterparties. The S&P Small and Medium Enterprises (SME)
rating tool uses the S&P ratings methodology to rate a company by producing a percentage PD and
LGD.

Refer to note 5 for more detail on credit risk mitigations relating to the co funding agreements,

Credit risk grading (continued)

For PD purposes, the tool incorporates quantitative and qualitative aspects. The quantitative aspect
requires input of the borrower’s financial statements {income statement and balance sheet) as well
as the country of risk, which is talen into account by the tool in the rating but not capped at the
country rating. The qualitative aspect entails answering questions, for 2.g. on the management, access
to liquidity etc., which may improve or worsen the guantitative rating. The Credit Risk Officer also has
the option of answering all these questions with "nat applicable or NfA" such that the rating from the
system is just a quantitative rating (i.e. just based an the financial statements that are input).

For LGD purposes, the tool requires loan specific information to be input. This incorporates the
seniority or ranking of the facility, whether it is secured or unsecured and what it is secured by. The
collateral amount for the facility is also included here, The tool uses this information, together with
the balance sheet information input for the PD above, to determine an LGD. The Credit Risk Reviewer
has the ability to override either one or both of the PD and LGD and have to provide a reason for
doing this.

The S&P SME rating tool has been specifically calibrated for SMEs in Africa and sometimes may not
provide the correct rating if the underlying transaction does not fit a typical SME or balance sheet
lending profile. For example, the tool requires financial information. Therefore, if a new business in a
special purpose vehicle that has no financial history is being financed, the tool cannot effectively rate
such a deal. This would apply to cash fliow-based lending structures or project finance type lending,
where the repayment does not rely on the balance sheet of the company but on the cash flows from
the asset being financed. Hence, there are a few deals which cannot be rated through this tool.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.3 Credit Risk (continued)

A deal can also be rated based on the creditworthiness of a guarantor, offtaker or insurance provider,
In a cash flow-based lending structure for example, one can use the rating of the offtaker for the
facility/ client since the ability of the borrower to repay the debt largely depends on the ability of the
offtaker to pay for the goods or services being supplied by the borrower, Where credit default is
insured, one can also use the rating of the insurer.

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially at each higher
risk grade. For example, this means that the difference in the PD bebween an A and &- rating grade
is lower than the difference in the PD between a B and B- rating grade. These published grades are
continuously monitored and updated by S&P. The PDs associated with each grade are determined
based on realised default rates over the prior 12 months, as published by the rating agency.

The S&P/ Fund’s rating method comprises of 19 rating levels from AAA to CCC-. The master scale
assigns each rating category a specified range of probabilities of default, which is stable over time.
The rating methads are subject to a regular validation and recalibration by S&P so that they reflect
the latest projections in the light of all actually observed defaults,

Credit risk grading (continved)

The Fund's rating scale is set out below:

Rating Associated Year 1 PD Percentage
Al 0.0046%
Al+ 0.0076%
Ad 0.0137%
Ad- 0.0286%:
A+ 0.0449%
A 0.06596%:
A- 0.0978%
BEB+ 0.1439%
BEE 0.1973%
BBE- 0.3094%
EB+ 0.4427%%
BE 0.7419%%
BBE- 1.2487%
B+ 2.4417%
B 4.5755%
B- 8.6656%
oCc+ 15.9703%
cCe 29.4341%,

cCC- 54.2517%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.3 Credit Risk {continued)
Coliateral and other credit enhancements

The Fund employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most common of these
is taking collateral or security for loans advanced. The Fund has internal policies on the valuation of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation but will generally take all collateral possible,
whether capable of independent valuation or not, to ensure that the borrower has much to lose by
defaulting on the loan and to incentivise the borrower to repay the loan or develop a strategy to repay
the loan even in difficult cdrcumstances.

The Fund prepares a valuation of the collateral obtained as part of the loan origination process. This
assessment i monitored and reviewed periodically. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are:

. Mortgages over properties

. Charges over business assets such as property, plant and equipment, inventory, bank
accounts and accounts receivable

. Charges over finandal instruments such as debt securities and equities; and

. Personal and/ or corporate guarantess,

The Fund's palicies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting
period and there has been no significant change in the owverall quality of the collateral held by the
Fund since the prior period.

The Fund closely monitors collateral held for assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes
more |ikely that the Fund will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses.
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 [CONTINUED)
19. Financlal Risk Management (continued)
19.3 Credit Risk (continued)
Financlal assets that ane cregit-impaired {stage 3) and related colateral held in crger to mitigate potential losses are shown below:
uscronn
Gross loans  Credit risk Maximum exposure  Impairment  Carrying  Walue of Collateral taken Value of other credit
receivable  exposune fully fior which a credit Allovrano: Amount  into account inta the ECL mitigation taken inba
mitigated loss can be measuremeant account inko the ECL
through co- incurred for the measunement
funding Fund
agreements
Credit-
imgaired
ety 53378 Lity 52,261 32,505 19,656 7,75 *11.670

*BFML guarentesd USD 11M of the value

Financial assets ane assessad based on their cradit retings as publiehed by Moody's o by an squivalent pubic rating agency, P-1 & the highest possiale shor-term rating.
Fnancial assets ara dassfiad withen the range of P-1 to P-3, Anancial assets which fall outside this range are dassified 2= not rabed. The Fund's cash ang cesh eguivalents
& classified bebwezn P-1 and P-3, whie its nans receivatle aie classified a5 not rated n 217,

In 2007, Mon-rabed finangal assets consst mainky of Inans recevable where the counterparties are vamnus private companies across Alca and Asia. All dzbt securnties
ana issuad bo counterparties only once the counterparty has gone through the Segregated Portfolio’s due diligence process, Bach counterparty and fadlity must be
approved by the Fund's credit committee before a debt securily is issued, Fach debl security has collzteral {as wel as additicnal secarity) written into the contract, the
miet commen callateral baing commaodities and minerals. On default of the debk secunities, the fair velue of the collsteral is trensfierred ta the Segregated Fortfalio,

he commadity financad by the Fung will sarve &= collataral for the [nan far the duration of the oan contract. I, at any tme during the loar contract, the aggregate value

f the collateral falls bekow an average of 105% of the eggregate value of the koan, the Fund will Be enlitied to cal upon the counterparty o prowice Turther secynty for
uch shortfall, providad that the shorfall is in excess of USD 10,000. M2 calls were made in the curment year of prior year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.3 Credit Risk (continued)

The following table provides information regarding the agaregated credit risk expasure for financial
assets with external credit ratings as at 31 December 2018:

Loans recaivable 2018 2017
uso usp
Mon - Rated - 805,556,940
31 Decemnber 2017
- Neither past due nor
impaired 210,913,316 242904488 344,239,541 798,057,345
- Past due but not
impaired - - 7,499,595 7,499,595
- Impaired - - 23,665,070 23,665,070
210,913,316 242,904,488 375,404,206 829,222,010
Prowvision for doubtful
debts aisad - - (23,665,070) (23,665,070)
210,913,316 242904488 351,739,136 805,556,940
2018 2017
uso usD
Cash and Cash equivalents
P-1 146,458 4,511,238
P-3 25,123,266 90,624,532
25,269,724 95,135,770

All cash and cash equivalents are naither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 3
months.

Other receivables
2018 2007
uso Uso
MNon - rated 2,259,671 4783770

All other receivables are neither past due nor impaired and have a maturity of less than 3 months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)

Concentration of credit risk (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Rating
BBE- and
Low Risk 21,099,734 . . 21,099,734 above
Medium Risk 725,813,042 214,913,138 - 940,726,180 B- to BB+
CCC+ and
High Risk 64,702,283 49,447,093 53,377,706 167,527,082 below

811,615,059 264,360,231 53,377,706 1,129,352,996

S S EEEEEREENR EEEENEEE EEEEEEEEE

Concentration of credit risk

It is the Company's policy to diversify its investment portfolio by investing in various classes of
Investments with varipus strategies so as to limit the volatility and risk if one particular sector, market
or company could suffer a major downfall which could significantly and adversely affect the overall
performance of the Fund. There are internal limits set up in terms of country exposure risk, commaodity
limit and sector limit. This is monitored at investment committee whereby prior to the presentation of
any potential deal, the country, commodity and sector limit is reviewed so that the Fund is not heavily
exposad nor breach any of its internal limit. The concentration limit is also reviewed at board level on
a quarterly basis to be able to assess the overall book.

The table below sets out the credit risk exposure to counterparties of financial assets at 31 December:

Commercial exposure 2018 2017
%o %

Counterparty 1 8% 12%
Counterparty 2 7% 9%
Counterparty 3 5% 5%
Cther counterparties 78% 4%
Cash and cash eguivalents 2% 10%
100% 10006

Retaill exposure as a percentage of loans receivables

Counterparty 1 4.6% =
Other counterpariies consisting of 78% (2017: 64%) of credit risk is made up of amounts due from
115 (2017: 110) entities. None of the other counterparties individually contribute more than 10°% to
the 70% total.

Policies and procedures for managing the risk

The counterparties to the Fund's investment in cash are well known and reputable and do not
expose the Fund to significant credit nsk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)

19.4 Capital Risk

The Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares.
The amount of net asset attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares can change
significantly on a monthly basis, as the Fund s subject to monthly subscriptions and quarterly
redemptions, as well as changes resulting from the Fund's performance. The Fund issue two classes
of redeemable shares (B1 and B2), which are redeemable at the holder's option and have identical
rights but different terms.

Bl share class is listed on Irish Stock Exchange and B2 share class contains a locking period which is
3 years. The Fund’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as
a going concern in orcder to provide returns for investors, provide benefits for other stakeholders and
maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.
In order to maintain the capital structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the following:

- Monitor the level of monthly subscriptions and quarterly redemptions relative to the assets it expects
to be able to liquidate within a calendar quarter.

- Redeemn and issue new shares in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Fund, which
include the ability to restrict redemptions.

- The Board of Directors and Investment Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net
assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders.

19.5 Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting cblications associated with
financial liabilities.

The main liguidity risk to the Fund arises from the redemption requests of investors. The holders of

redesmable participating shares are entitlied to redeem part or all of their capital which exposes the
Fund to the liguidity risk of not meeting this obligation.

The Liquidity is limited to the receipt of a 90 day withdrawal notice from investors and is dealt with
by managing the duration of the loan book. The net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares are payable every calendar quarter. The loan book has a range of repayment
dates, the weighted average of which fall within 340 days of year end for the Barak Structured Trade
Finance SP. B2 share class contains a locking period which is 3 years.

If redemption requests on any redemption day equal or excesd 30% of the outstanding aggregate
participating shares in issue on that redemption day, the directors may elect to restrict the total
number of participating shares to be redeemed to 30% of the outstanding aggregate participating
shares in issue on that redemption date, in which case all redemption requests will be scaled down
pro rata o the size of that request. The balance will be redeemed at the discretion of the directors on
the next succeeding redemption day or any redempbion day thereafter when the directors deem that
the fund has sufficient liquidity to pay those redemptions provided that the redemptions will be
processed in priority to any requests received thersafter.

The Fund is also exposed to the risk of not meeting its obligations to co-funders. This is however a
minor risk, as co-funders are repaid when the Fund receives repayments from its clients. The table
below summarisas the Fund's exposure to liquidity risks at undiscounted figures, It includes the Fund's
asseis at amortised cost, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, and
from Statement of Financial Position date, The unlisted debt securities are shown net of provision for
doubtful debts. For the net values, please refer to note 5 (Loans Recsivabla):
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MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
19, Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.5 Liguidity Risk (continued)
3 Months or less 3 to 6 months 6 to 12 months 1to 4 years Total
31 December 2018
Assels - Undisopuntead
439,638,002
Leans redeiablia 109.471,1% 411,088 365 10,578,800 1,158,074, 352
Qther regaivables 4259871 i+ - = 2,258,671
iCash and cash eguivelents 25, 264,724 - - - 25,250,724

Tokal aszats 150,455 827
Liabilitles - Undiscounted
Aocrued expenses (506, 116) - - - (506,116)
Loans and aother payables [36,251,678) (54,345, 561) (70,328, 5813 (6,433,400 (182,200,323)
Capital contrbutions recened in advence

[21,500,000) e ’ . (21,520,000
Tobal kabilitses [58,277,703) {E5,385.051) (70,325,281 {5,433 403] (204,226,238)
Net Aasels 0,383,514 130,085,234 40,759,105 102,443,398 98,177,349

Faqe f3
BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLID
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
19, Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.5 Liguidity Risk {continued)
3 Months ar less 3 b2 & months B to 12 monthe Tatal
31 Decernber 2017
Bggels - Undisoounted
Loans redenabie 385,051 883 177,368,565 206, 783413 829,203,861
Chbver resceivaibes 4763770 - . 4 7R3
Cash and cash equivelents 65,135 370 = G5,.135, 250
Tolal awets A4, 971,423 177, 368,565 306, 783413 5,123,401
Liabities - Undiscounted
Accruad expensas [7OET 43T - . (7,083,437
Loans and ather payvables {13,232, B58) (5,083,328) (54.273,353) {72,569,543)
Capital contrbutioms received i
acvance 16,650,000 - v {16,650,000)
Terkal Fandilitaes (37,856,290 (5,083,329 {54,273,358) {57,222,917)
Met Ascats 172 285 2365 252 510,085 BE1.900,439

170/226



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Page 64
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.6 Currency Risk

The net asset value per share is computed in USD, and all loans receivable are denominated in USD.
The Fund, thus has very limited exposure to currency risk.

The following is an analysis of currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2018:

Non- Non-
Derivative  Monetary Monetary Monetary Monetary Net
Notionals Assets Assets liabilities Liabilities  Exposure
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
uso uso uso usp usD uspo
South African
Rand - 527 - (13,904) = (13,377}
Euro o = = (243,208) e (243,208}

The following is an analysis of currency exposure other than USD at 31 December 2017:

Non- MNon-
Derivative Monetary  Monetary Monetary Monetary Net
Notionals Assets Assets liabilities Liabilities  Exposure
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
usD usp usp uspD usp uspD
South African
Rand - 1,925 - (19,823 - {17,898)
Euro - - (26,346) - (26,346}
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, had the US Dollar strengthened by 10 in relation to all currencies, with all
other variables held constant, net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares for
the year would have increased by the amounts shown below. A 10% weakening of the US Dollar
against the below currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite effect on the financial
statement amounts shown below, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

2018 2017
usp uso
South African Rand +f- (1,338) +/- (1,790}

Euro Ji (24,321) +/- (2,635)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)
19.7 Geographical Risk

Below are tables describing the geographical risk of loans and receivables based on counterparty’s
country.

Currency Carrying amount ﬁ::f Carrying amount %% of NAY
2018 207

Angola UsD - 0.00% 716,422 0.09%
Botswana usD 11,556,500 1.29% 10,907,616 1.35%
Brasil usD 3,695,814 0.41% 2,227,766 0.28%
China UsD - 0.00% o08,724 0.11%
Cyprus usD - 0.00% 23,560,568 2.91%
D.R of Congo UsD 45,803,631 5.11% 22,803,926 2.82%
Dubai uso 377,184 0.04% 718,264 0.09%
Egypt uso 8,692,510 0.97% 171,377 0.02%
Guinga UsD 15,416,428 1.44% - 0.00%
Ghana uso 177,735,534 19.81% 123,410,878 15.27%
Ivory Coast UsD 5,697,442 0.64% - 0.00%
Kenya UsD 189,168,562 21.09% 128,553,511 15.91%
Madagascar usD 18,566,891 2.07% 12,822,978 1.59%
Malawi UsD 1,045,056 0.12% 2,931,298 0.36%
Malta usDh = 0.00% 31,617,662 3.91%
Mauritius usD 49,248,783 5.49% 18,700,244 2.31%
Mozambigue uUsD 1,131,129 0.13% 2,128,341 0.26%
Migeria usD 1,342,888 0.15% - 0.00%
Namibia UsD 2,337,166 0.26% 4,066,181 0.50%
MNetherlands uso 14,971,470 1.67% 10,656,480 1.32%

Republic of Congo usb 85,467,564 9.53% 5 0.00%
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management (continued)
19.7 Geographical Risk {continued)

Rwanda usp 10,851,978 1.49% - 0.00%
Senegal uso 30,933,456 3.45% - 0.00%
Seychelles UsD 2,439,054 0.27% 18,410,506 2.40°%
Singapors UsD 2,550,076 0.28% 12,169,198 1.51%
South Africa UsD 331,384,362 36.94% 219,117,181  27.11%
South Sudan UsD 1,507,943 0.17% 1,221,013 0.15%
Tanzania UsD 14,148,624 1.58% 9,755,562 1.21%
Uganda UsD 13,150,566 1.47% 10,649,755 1.32%
United Arab Emirates UsD 1,517,748 0.17% 1,231,493 0.15%
United States of America UsD 14,829 0.00% - 0.00°%
United Kingdom UsD - 0.00% 84,452,244 10.45%
Zambia usp 71,235,096 7.94% 56,892,041 7.04%
Zimbabwe usp 17,364,714 1.94% 17,422,771 2.16%
0.00% 0.00%
Total Loans and receivables 1,129,352,996 125.90% 826,222,010 102.59%
ECL {64,370,668) -7.18% (23,665,070) -2.93%
Loans and receivables per the
Statement of Financial
Positon 1,064,982,329 118.73% 805,556,940 99.67%
Other net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable
participating Shares (167,993,249) -18.73% 2,606,563 0.33%
Met net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
participating Shares 806,980,080 100.00% 808,253,503 100.00%

Prior year exposure which were classified under Cyprus, Malta and United Kingdom were reclassed
to Senegal, South Africa and Republic of Congo in 2018 to represent a better indication as to where
operations is being financed.
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)
19.7 Geographical Risk (continued)

Notes and receivables per

the Statement of Financial

Position: {1,061,105,961) 118.3% 805,556,940 99.67%
Other net assets (164,116,880) (18.30)% 2,696,563 0.33%
Net assets

attributable to

holders of

redeemable

participating

shares 896,989,081 100% BOB, 253,503 100G

The Fund's origination team have track records and experience of on-the-ground undertakings across
a broad range of countries. As the Funds continue to grow and the number of opportunities rise,
including the growing footprint of Barak's presence across Africa (offices in South Africa, Kenya and
Ivory Coast), the Fund is continuously looking to grow the number of countries in which it is invested,

19.8 Concentration Risk

It is the Fund's policy to diversify its investment portfolio by investing in various classes of Investments
with various strategies so as to limit the volatility and risk if one particular sector, market or company
could suffer a major downfall which could significantly and adversely affect the overall performance
of the Fund. There are internal limit st up in terms of country exposure risk, commodity limit and
sector limit. This is monitored at investment committee whereby prior to the presentation of any
patential deal, the country, commodity and sector limit is reviewed so that the Fund is not heavily
exposad nor breach any of its internal limit. The concentration limit is also reviewed at board level on
a quarterly basis to able to assess the overall book.

The table belyw sets out the concentration risk of the undertying commodities held at 31 December:

2018 2017
Equipment 15% 15%
Metals 17% 14%
Fertilisar 7% 13%
FMCG 9%, 11%
Petroleum products 6% 10%
Truck Fleet 6% 6%
Cement 6% 6%
Sugar 5% 1%
Other commodities 29% 29%
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BARAK STRUCTURED TRADE FINANCE SEGREGATED PORTFOLIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(CONTINUED)

19. Financial Risk Management {continued)
19.8 Concentration Risk (continued)
Other commodities consisting of 29% in 2018 made up of 22 commadity sectors.

All collaterals were in a sound state at 31 December 2018, There have been no significant
deteriorations or changes in collateral policies.

The Barak Fund Management origination team have specialties lving across a broad range of
commodity sectors, They have strong relationships with third party collateral managers across all
relevant jurisdictions and they leverage their skill-sets across different sectors. As the Funds continue
to grow and the number of opportunities rise, the Fund is continuously looking to grow the number
of sectors in which it was invested,

20. Approval of Financial Statements

The annual financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis. Based on their assassment
the directors have no reason to believe that the segregated portfolio will not continue as a going
concern in the foreseeable future. The viability of the Segregated Portfolio is supported by the annual
financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2019,

21. Subsequent Events

There are no significant events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that require
disclosure.
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(2009 2009 12 31 ) 94,887 21,479 73,408
(2010 2010 12 31 ) 68,295 13,925 127,778
(2011 2011 12 31 ) 44,040 18,582 153,236
(2012 2012 12 31 ) 71,474 8,400 216,310
(2013 2013 12 31 ) 177,828 55,338 338,800
(2014 2014 12 31 ) 265,860 26,194 578,466
(2015 2015 12 31 ) 272,911 133,042 718,335
(2016 2016 12 31 ) 709,154 118,153 1,309,336
(2017 2017 12 31 ) 1,763,636 447,291 2,625,681
(2018 102018 12 31 ) 644,447 531,660 2,738,468
2017
(2009 2009 12 31 )
(2010 2010 12 31 )
(2011 2011 12 31 )
(2012 2012 12 31 )
(2013 2013 12 31 )
(2014 2014 12 31 )
(2015 2015 12 31 )
(2016 2016 12 31 )
(2017 2017 12 31 ) 647,290 9,034 638,256
(2018 102018 12 31 ) 0 36,346 601,910
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— Parmanan Deopersad

2019 28

Independent Auditor®s Report

To the Board of Directors of Barak Fund SPC Limited
Our opinion
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In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of Barak Structured Trade Finance Segregated Portfolio (a segregated
portfolio of Barak Fund SPC Limited) (the Fund) as at 31 December 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Fund®s financial statements comprise:
« the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;
e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Our audit approach
Overview
Materiality
e Overall materiality: US$ 9.0m, which represents 1% of the net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares (NAV) of the Fund.
Audit Scoping
e The Fund is a Cayman Islands exempted company and has appointed Barak Fund Management
Limited (the Manager) to manage its affairs and investments subject to the overall
supervision and control of the Fund"s Board of Directors.
Key audit matters
eAssessment of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on loans receivable.

Audit scope

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made
subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in
all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.
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Our 2018 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact that the operations of the

Fund remain largely unchanged from the prior year, but that new accounting standards are
applicable for the current year.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the types of
investments within the Fund, the involvement of the Manager and administrator, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Fund operates.

The Fund®s accounting is delegated to the administrator who maintain their own accounting
records and controls and report to management. As part of our risk assessment, we considered
the Fund"s interaction with the administrator, and we evaluated the control environment in
place at the administrator.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality, including the overall Fund materiality for the financial statements as a whole as
set out in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to
determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and
to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Overall Fund materiality US$ 9.0m

Rationale for the materiality We have applied this benchmark, a generally accepted

benchmark applied auditing practice for investment company audits, in the
absence of indicators that an alternative benchmark would be
appropriate and because we believe this provides an
appropriate and consistent year-on-year basis for our audit.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements
identified during our audit above 0.05% of NAV, as well as misstatements below these amounts
that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
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Assessment of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on loans receivable

Refer to note 5 (Loans receivable) of the Fund®s financial statements as well as note 2 (New
and amended standards adopted by the Fund and Critical accounting estimates and judgements)
and 19.3 (Credit risk).

At 31 December 2018, gross loans receivable were USD 1,129 million, of which USD 162 million
of credit risk exposure is mitigated through co-funding agreements, resulting in a maximum
exposure to credit losses of USD 967 million. A provision for ECL of USD 64 million was
recognised in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9), which became applicable
for the first time in the current year.

The ECL assessment of loans receivable inherently contains a large degree of estimation
uncertainty as significant judgements are required to be made by management in the calculation
thereof. The ECL provision was considered to be a matter of most significance to the current
year audit due to the magnitude of the gross loans receivable and provision for ECL , as well
as the level of judgement required in determining the ECL provision.

An ECL is determined for each individual counterparty exposure. The key areas of significant
judgement applied by management in the ECL calculations include the following:
e Evaluation of significant increase in credit risk (SICR);
e Incorporation of macro-economic inputs and forward looking information in the SICR
assessment and ECL measurement; and
e Input assumptions applied to estimate the probability of default (PD), exposure at
default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD).

Evaluation of significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Management applies its knowledge of the borrower, the group of companies in which the borrower
operates and the industry in which it operates to determine whether there was evidence of a
SICR.

Management use the following factors when determining SICR:

- Significant adverse changes in regulatory, business, financial and/ or economic

conditions in which the borrower operates;

e Actual or expected restructuring;

e Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower;

e Significant change in collateral value which is expected to increase risk of default;
and
Early signs of cashflow/ liquidity problems such as unexplained delay in servicing of
trade creditors/ loans

Incorporation of macro-economic inputs and forward looking information in the SICR assessment
and ECL measurement

Macroeconomic expectations are implicitly incorporated into SICR assessments and the ECL per
exposure based on the Fund®s expectation of future economic and business conditions.

The credit risk ratings assigned to loan receivable balances include an implicit forward
looking view since the current and future outlook is captured in this rating.
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Loan receivable balances are primarily affected by borrower specific events and conditions

that impacts the staging classification of loans. Future macro-economic impacts are expected
to have a lesser impact due to the short maturity profile.

Input assumptions applied to estimate the PD, EAD and LGD

Assumptions applied to estimate the PD, EAD and LGD as input into the ECL measurements are
subject to management judgement and are determined at an exposure level.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
We tested the ECL of loans receivable as follows:

Evaluation of SICR

On a sample basis for stage 1 and stage 2 loans, we assessed the stage classification of these
exposures with reference to the Fund®s criteria for determination of SICR at reporting date.
This included assessing whether the factors that have been considered by management for an
increase in credit risk are appropriate. We tested loans to evaluate whether there was a
significant increase in credit risk subsequent to the origination of the loans.

Incorporation of macro-economic inputs and forward looking information in the SICR assessment
and ECL measurement

We selected a sample of loan receivable balances and evaluated the incorporation of forward
looking information into their assigned credit risk ratings and also considered how
developments after year end relating to macro-economic factors were taken into account.

Assumptions applied in estimating PD, EAD and LGD within the ECL measurement

We considered the uncertainties and assumptions applied by management in their assessment of
PD, EAD and LGD. With the assistance of our actuarial experts, we assessed the input
assumptions applied within the ECL calculation relating to the PD, EAD and LGD calculations as
follows:

« Assigned PDs were compared to the Fund®s historic average default rates and compared to
industry default rates. We independently developed a range of PD"s using the historic
average rates and the industry default rates and compared those to the PD"s assigned by
management.

e e tested the EAD by agreeing the outstanding balance at 31 December 2018 to supporting
documentation and by testing management"s projection of the expected default balance
between 31 December 2018 and the expected date of default.

e For collateral held, a sample was selected where we obtained confirmations from
independent collateral managers, inspected legal agreements and supporting documents to
confirm the existence and the right to collateral. The collateral valuation techniques
applied by management were assessed against approved valuation guidelines and
benchmarks. Based on PD, LGD and EAD tested above, we independently recalculated the
ECL and compared this to management®s ECL calculation.

e We compared management®s ECL to historic actual loss rates.

No material misstatements were identified as a result of the procedures we performed.
Other Information
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Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Annual Report (but does not include the Fund®s financial statements and our auditor®s report
thereon).

Our opinion on the Fund"s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Fund"s financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund *s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund®s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for Barak Fund SPC Limited
in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

The engagement leader on the audit resulting in this independent auditor®s report is Parmanan
Deopersad.

PricewaterhoueCoopers

28 June 2019

225/226



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO00o0bDOo0oDOoOdnoo(ess219)
OOoooooooooooOooao

(

)

226/226



	表紙
	本文
	第一部証券情報
	第１外国投資証券(外国新投資口予約権証券及び外国投資法人債券を除く。)
	（１）外国投資法人の名称
	（２）外国投資証券の形態等
	（３）発行（売出）数
	（４）発行（売出）価額の総額
	（５）発行（売出）価格
	（６）申込手数料
	（７）申込単位
	（８）申込期間
	（９）申込証拠金
	（10）申込取扱場所
	（11）払込期日
	（12）払込取扱場所
	（13）引受け等の概要
	（14）手取金の使途
	（15）その他

	第２外国新投資口予約権証券
	第３外国投資法人債券（短期外債を除く。）
	第４短期外債

	第二部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１外国投資法人の概況
	（１）主要な経営指標等の推移
	（２）外国投資法人の目的及び基本的性格
	（３）外国投資法人の仕組み
	（４）外国投資法人の機構
	（５）外国投資法人の出資総額
	（６）主要な投資主の状況

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）分配方針
	（４）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産等の推移
	②分配の推移
	③自己資本利益率(収益率)の推移


	６手続等の概要
	７管理及び運営の概要

	第２財務ハイライト情報
	１貸借対照表
	２損益計算書

	第３外国投資証券事務の概要
	第４外国投資法人の詳細情報の項目

	第三部外国投資法人の詳細情報
	第１外国投資法人の追加情報
	１外国投資法人の沿革
	２役員の状況
	３外国投資法人に係る法制度の概要
	４監督官庁の概要
	５その他

	第２手続等
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等

	第３管理及び運営
	１資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）存続期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	２利害関係人との取引制限
	３投資主・外国投資法人債権者の権利等
	（１）投資主・外国投資法人債権者の権利
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第４関係法人の状況
	１資産運用会社の概況
	（１）名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	（２）運用体制
	（３）大株主の状況
	（４）役員の状況
	（５）事業の内容及び営業の概況

	２その他の関係法人の概況
	（１）名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	（２）関係業務の概要
	（３）資本関係


	第５外国投資法人の経理状況
	１財務諸表
	(1)貸借対照表
	(2)損益計算書
	(3)投資有価証券明細表等

	２外国投資法人の現況
	純資産額計算書


	第６販売及び買戻しの実績

	第四部特別情報
	第１投資法人制度の概要
	第２外国投資証券の様式
	第３その他

	監査報告書

